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In July of 1990, Mt. Rainier National Bank

opened in Enumclaw, Washington, as an independent locally owned bank. Since that time
we have enjoyed 50 consecutive quarters of growth in most every area we measure. At the
company'’s annual meeting in March 1993, shareholders approved the formation of
Mountain Bank Holding Company. Shares of Mt. Rainier National Bank were exchanged
on a one-for-one basis in the new company. The formation was an important step in the
long-range plan to expand the business and increase the value of the shareholders’ invest-
ment. Share value has increased steadily and at year-end was 588% greater than a share

purchased in 1990, after factoring splits and stock dividends.

Today we have offices in
Enumclaw, Buckley, Black
Diamond, Auburn and Maple
Valley with a new branch under
7‘ construction in Sumner. Our focus
= on customer service has been

rewarded with a large market share

- in most every market we enter.
Future plans for the company
include new locations and added
3 use of technology that will improve
§ efficiencies and benefit our cus-

tomers. We feel that creating value

for our customers has the benefit of

creating value for our shareholders,
and that is the primary goal of
Mountain Bank Holding Company.
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2002 was a very good Year for Mountain Bank Holding

Company and its subsidiary, Mt. Rainier National Bank. We opened our fifth new branch,
began construction on our sixth, launched on-line-banking through the Internet and set
records in virtually every area we measure. In addition we increased our capital by having

the ninth stock offering since the company opened 12 years ago.

Our directors’ primary objective has always
been to increase the value of our sharehold-
ers’ investment. For a young company, that
requires a focus on growth. In 2002, we
increased our total assets to $143,174,000, or
just over 13.7% growth for the year. As a

- point of comparison, total bank assets grew
only about 5% in the U.S. last year and that
was funded by a 4.6% growth in deposits.

The lowest interest rates our country has

I seen1 in more than 40 years as a result of a
lower FED rate, hasn’t discouraged deposi-
tors who want to protect their principal. As
other non-bank financial markets continued
to seek direction in 2002, an increasing

number of investment dollars migrated to the safe haven offered by insured bank deposits.

Our deposits ended the year at $127,011,000, for an increase of 13.3%, again well above

the national average. We are encouraged by this growth and accept it as a positive indica-

tor that our planning and attention to the company’s primary objective is accomplishing

our goal of increasing shareholder value.

Mt. Rainier National Bank’s loan department also had a very good year increasing the port-
folio by 19.4% to close at $82,261,000 in total loans. To accomplish this our loan officers
made or renewed 794 loans last year with an average value of just over $94,000. And, we
are pleased to report that even with this workload they managed to maintain the very
strong asset quality our company has always enjoyed. The difficult economic times our

region and country have been experiencing for the last two years has resulted in some




major write-offs for many banks. In 2002, we experienced some increase
in write-offs compared to previous years but historically we remained far

below our peer group average.

Low interest rates offered a window of opportunity for new homebuy-
ers and for existing homeowners wanting to refinance. To keep pace
with demand and support customer needs, the mortgage department
at Mt. Rainier National Bank added staff and closed 230 home loans
last year with a total value of $31,887,000. As an added service last
year, we made mortgage loan officers or representatives available to
meet with customers at all of our branch locations. We find that many
customers would rather pursue a home loan through their bank with
someone they know rather than with an on-line service or mortgage
only company where everyone is a stranger. The mortgage department
that we first opened in 1992, is just one more step in our goal of being
a true full service bank and living up to our commitment of taking

care of our customers’ financial needs.
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In the last two years falling rates have put a real squeeze on interest-rate-margin, the pri-

mary source of income for banks. Last year in spite of the low rates Mountain Bank

Holding Company posted its best earnings year in the company’s history with $1,151,660

in net income, exceeding forecast by more than 9%. In banking like any other business

you can’t always control the market environment in which you are forced to operate. Our

company has always had a strong dedication to planning and been flexible and willing to
adjust the plan to meet
market conditions. Last
year we carefully
increased earning
assets, tightened con-
trols on expenses and
improved operational
efficiencies in every
area possible, being

careful to not have a

999 2000 2000 2002




negative effect on customer service. As a result

of this effort we finished with a record year in
spite of the market reducing our interest-rate-

margin.

Early in the second quarter of 2002, we sold
stock for the ninth time since the company
opened. The proceeds from this sale were used
to pay for the Maple Valley branch and increase
our capital to support growth. Each of the com-
pany’s previous eight stock offerings has sold
out in less time than allowed by the regulators.
This sale was no exception; it was fully sub-
scribed in only nine days making it the shortest
sale in our history. Unfortunately some share-
holders wanting to buy stock were disappointed
to find it had sold out so quickly, but were gen-
erally pleased with the fact that there was such

a strong demand for the shares. If you consider
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our two-for-one share splits and a stock dividend paid, the

actual appreciation since 1990, is 588%, over the original pre-

opening share purchase price. Perhaps more important, this

growth has been very near linear and tracking with the long

range plans developed by the board of directors.

For our company to maintain its growth and stay within the

regulators’ guidelines we must continue to increase our capital.
For a bank to be considered adequately capitalized by the
Federal Regulators, they need to maintain at least 8% capital to
risk-weighted assets. For banks to be considered well capitalized
they need a minimum of 10% capital to risk-weighted assets.
Thanks to tremendous shareholder support, Mountain Bank
Holding Company has never been short of capital and ended
2002, with 13.73% total capital to risk-weighted assets. This
strong capital position makes it easier for us to continue with
our expansion plans and puts us in a position to take advantage

of opportunities that other companies may need to pass by.
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Roy T. Brooks
Chairman
Mountain Bank Holding Company

Steve W. Moergeli
President
Mt. Rainier National Bank

Member FDIC

Construction 3.5%
Agriculture 3.8% -

Other 5.6%

Consumer

er this to be positive proof that listening to customers, responding to their requests and

offering the kind of personal service once considered normal, does pay rewards.

As we have said before, our shareholders and employees are Mountain Bank Holding
Company’s strongest asset. Without shareholders supplying capital and encouragement, and
our employees’ dedication to customer service this company could not continue to set new
records and achieve its goals. The directors and management recognize, appreciate and
thank you for your contributions to the success of this company. Our plan for the future has
not changed; we are focused on increasing the value of the shareholders’ investment by

maintaining our dedication and following the strategy outlined in our long-range plan

Loan Distribution (millicns)
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Corporate Headquarters

501 Roosevelt Avenue
Enumclaw, Washington 98022
(360) 825-0100

Independent Auditers

McGladrey & Pullen, LLP
Tacoma, Washington

General Counsel

Graham & Dunn, PC
Seattle/Tacoma, Washington

Directors

Susan K. Bowen-Hahto
Real Estate Management and Land Development

Roy T. Brooks

Chairman, President & CEO Mountain Bank Holding Company
Chairman Mt. Rainier National Bank

Chairman & CEO Westmark Electronics, Inc.

Brian W. Gallagher
Owner & President of Northern Transport, Inc.

Michael K. Jones
Owner & President of Jones & Associates, Certified Public Accountants

Steve W. Moergeli
President & CEO Mt. Rainier National Bank

Barry C. Kombol
An attorney in private practice
General Counsel for Pacific Coast Coal Comparny

John W. Raeder
Retired Executive, Construction Industry

J. B. Rupert
Owner & President Rupert Engineering, Inc.

Garrett S. Van Beek
Owner and operator of The Van Beek Dairy Farm

Hans R. Zurcher .
Owner and operator, with his son of The Zurcher Dairy Farms

Executive Officers

Sheila M. Brumley
Chief Financial Officer and Secretary
Senior Vice President, Secretary and Cashier of the Bank

Sterlin E. Franks
Senior Vice President and Credit Administrator of the Bank

Branch Lecations:

Auburn

1436 Auburn Way So.
Auburn, WA 98002
Phone (253) 288-0100

Black Diamond

31329 3rd Avenue

Black Diamond, WA 98010
Phone (360) 886-0300

Buckley

29290 SR 410
Buckley, WA 98321
Phone (360) 829-0100

Enumclaw

501 Roosevelt Avenue
Enumclaw, WA 98022
Phone (360) 825-0100

Maple Valley

23924 225th Way S.E.
Maple Valley, WA 98038
Phone (425) 413-8200

Sumner

15104 E. Main
Sumner, WA 98390
Phone (253) 826-0100
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(ITEMS 6-11, MODEL B, FORM 1-A4)

ITEM 6. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

General

Mountain Bank Holding Company (“Mountain Bank Holding”) is a Washington corporation formed in 1993
primarily to hold all of the Common Stock of Mt. Rainier National Bank (“Mt. Rainier Bank”), a National Banking
Association organized under the laws of the United States. Mt. Rainier Bank provides personal and commercial
banking and related financial services at its main office located in Enumclaw, Washington, and from four branch
offices located in Buckley, Black Diamond, Auburn, and Maple Valley, Washington. Mountain Bank Holding is
regulated by the Federal Reserve Board (the “FRB”) under the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, as amended. A
bank holding company is generally defined as a company that has direct or indirect control of a bank. Mountain
Bank Holding qualifies as a bank holding company because it owns one hundred percent (100%) of the outstanding
securities of Mt. Rainier Bank. At December 31, 2002, Mountain Bank Holding reported on a consolidated basis total
assets of $143,174,000, total deposits of $127,011,000, and shareholders’ equity of $15,541,000.

Mountain Bank Holding’s strategy is to capitalize on its investment in Mt. Rainier Bank through continued
growth in Mt. Rainier Bank's assets, deposits and earnings, and creation of long-term value for Company
shareholders by pursuing the following:

- Monitoring and improving the credit quality of Mt. Rainier Bank's existing
asset base;

- Concentrating on expense control, interest spread maximization
and marketing of fee-based products, as well as maintaining
adequate liquidity and capital levels;

- Emphasizing close working relationships between Mt. Rainier Bank’s
senior management, directors, loan officers and commercial
customers; and

- Focusing on training programs to ensure that management and
staff have knowledge necessary to serve customers and remain in
compliance with all tegal and regulatory obligations.

There can be no assurance that Mt. Rainier Bank will achieve these objectives.

DESCRIPTION OF MT. RAINIER NATIONAL BANK
Mt. Rainier Bank -

Mt. Rainier National Bank is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Mountain Bank Holding. While Mountain Bank
Holding and Mt. Rainier Bank are distinctly different entities reguiated by different regulatory bodies, the income of
Mountain Bank Holding presently is almost entirely derived from dividends upstreamed from Mt. Rainier Bank to

Mountain Bank Holding. Therefore, the value of the securities of Mountain Bank Holding is, to a large extent,
dependent upon the success of Mt. Rainier Bank.

History

Mt. Rainier Bank opened on July 2, 1990, in Enumclaw, Washington, énd has been operating since that
date.

Business

Mt. Rainier Bank, through its main office and four branches, offers a full line of commercial banking services
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including checking accounts, savings programs, ATMs, night depository services, customer safe deposit box
facilities, consumer loans, residential loans, commercial loans, real estate and construction loans and agriculture
loans, NOW accounts and certificates of deposit. ‘

The principal sources of Mt. Rainier Bank’s revenues are: (i) interest and fees on loans; (ii) deposit service
charges; (iii} interest on deposits in other banks (generally on an overnight basis); (iv) gains on mortgages originated
and sold to the secondary market; (v) interest on investments, and (vi) fees from sales of non-deposit investment
products. Loans include short-to-medium-term commercial and consumer loans, including operating loans and lines,
equipment loans, automobile loans, recreational vehicle and truck loans, personal loans and lines of credit, home
improvement and rehabilitation loans, VISA national credit cards, and residential morigage lending. Mt. Rainier Bank
also offers safe deposit boxes, direct deposit of payroll and social security checks, automated teller machine access,
debit cards, automatic drafts for various accounts, telephone banking, Internet banking and bill payment services.

Mt. Rainier Bank has a night depository and an ATM, as well as drive-up services, at each of its offices.

Mt. Rainier Bank’s core deposit base generally has been enhanced through advertising and deposit
promaotions, and focusing on securing the entire banking relationship of each of its customers. Mt. Rainier Bank has
not used brokered deposits as a source of funds.

Mt. Rainier Bank’s commercial banking activities target high net worth individuals and their businesses with
an emphasis on small to medium size businesses. Mt. Rainier Bank’s operating strategy is to offer personal service,
flexibility and timely responsiveness to the needs of its customers. Senior management of Mt. Rainier Bank and
Mountain Bank Holding maintain close personal contact and close working relationships with Mt. Rainier Bank’s
commercial customers and their businesses, and Mt. Rainier Bank’s and the Company’s Boards of Directors
primarily include local business people from Mt. Rainier Bank’s primary service area. Most of Mt. Rainier Bank’s new
commercial banking business consists of referrals from existing customers. Mountain Bank Holding believes that Mt.
Rainier Bank’s loan portfolio is appropriately diversified. All floating rate loans are priced at prime or higher.

Mountain Bank Holding believes that the growth in [oans and profitability achieved by Mt. Rainier Bank also
is attributable in large measure to its strategy of targeting smaller and medium size businesses in the manner
described above and to the business and personal relationships and experience of Mt. Rainier Bank’s and Mountain
Bank Holding’s management and Directors, rather than the result of greater risk-taking or price concessions. In
addition, there have been numerous acquisitions and mergers of banks in Mt. Rainier Bank’s primary service area
which have made the larger institutions in the market even larger. This has resulted in Mt. Rainier Bank focusing
primarily on the needs of the smaller and medium size commercial customers.

Service Area

Mt. Rainier Bank’s primary service area is South King County and East Pierce County, including Enumclaw,
Buckley, Black Diamond, Auburn, Maple Valley and surrounding communities. Enumclaw’s population is 11,100,
having experienced 46% growth since 1990. Enumclaw is primarily considered a residential community, with most
growth in single family residences. The local economy is dependent upon the forest products industry, farming, and
tourism. Buckley has experienced less growth with a population of 4,410. Buckley is a residential community with
very little business growth in the past few years. Black Diamond is now experiencing increased growth, with a
population of 4,035, up from 1,760 in 1990. Auburn is a larger community with a population of 45,010, up from
35,230 in 1990. Maple Valley has increased its population to 16,165 from 10,500 in 1997 when it became a city.

Employees

As of December 31, 2002, Mountain Bank Holding employed a full-time President and CEO and a half-time
Chief Financial Officer. As of the same date, Mt. Rainier Bank had 61 full-time-equivalent employees, including three
Executive Officers. None of Mt. Rainier Bank’s employees is presently represented by a union or covered by a
collective bargaining agreement. Mt. Rainier Bank considers its relationships with its employees to be good.

Competition

The banking business in Mt. Rainier Bank’s primary service area is highly competitive with respect to both
loans and deposits. All the major out-of-state commercial banks which operate in Washington (including Bank of
America, Key Bank, Washington Mutual, Wells Fargo and U.S. Bank) have a branch or branches within Mt. Rainier
Bank’s primary service area. Among the advantages such major banks have are their ability to finance wide-ranging

2




advertising campaigns and to allocate their investment assets to geographic regions of higher yield and demand.
Such banks offer certain services which are not offered directly by Mt. Rainier Bank (but are offered indirectly
through correspondent institutions); and, by virtue of their greater total capitalization (legal lending limits to an
individual customer are based upon a percentage of a bank’s total shareholder equity accounts), such banks have
substantially higher lending Iimits than Mt. Rainier Bank.

Mt. Rainier Bank also competes with a number of non-bank competitors such as insurance companies, small
loan companies, finance companies, mortgage companies, credit unions, brokerage houses, and other financial
institutions. Many of Mountain Bank Holding's non-bank competitors are not subject to the extensive federal and
state regulations which govern Mountain Bank Holding and, as a result, have a competitive advantage over the

| Company in providing certain services.

‘ Mt. Rainier Bank believes its competitive position has been strengthened by the consolidation in the banking
| industry which has resulted in a focus by the larger banks on their larger accounts, with less direct contact between
the officers and their customers. Mt. Rainier Bank’s strategy, by contrast, is to remain a middle market lender which
maintains close, long-term contact with its customers.

‘ Products and Services

In conjunction with the growth of its asset base, Mt. Rainier Bank has introduced new products and services
to position itself to compete in its highly competitive market. Mt. Rainier Bank’s customers demand not only a wide
range of financial products but also efficient and convenient service. In response to these demands, Mt. Rainier
Bank has developed a mix of products and services utilizing technology available to the banking industry such as
telephone banking, internet banking, bill payment services and automated teller machines. Additionally, Mt. Rainier
Bank offers a wide range of commercial and retail banking products and services to its customers. Deposit accounts
include certificates of deposit, individual retirement accounts and other time deposits, checking and other demand
deposit accounts, interest-bearing checking accounts, savings accounts and money market accounts. Loans
include residential real estate, commercial, financial and real estate construction and development, instaliment and
consumer loans. Other products and services include: credit related insurance; ATMs, safe deposit boxes and non-
deposit investment products.

Marketing

Mt. Rainier Bank uses to the fullest extent possible the flexibility which is accorded by its independent status.
This includes an emphasis on specialized services, local promotional activity, and personal contacts by Mt. Rainier
Bank’s officers, directors and employees. Mt. Rainier Bank also seeks to provide special services and programs for
individuals in its primary service area who are employed in the business and professional fields. In the event there
are customers whose loan demands exceed Mt. Rainier Bank’s lending limits, Mt. Rainier Bank arranges for such
loans on a participation basis with other financial institutions.

Lending Activities

The two main areas in which Mt. Rainier Bank has directed its lendable funds are commercial and real estate
loans. At December 31, 2002, these categories accounted for approximately 24% and 69%, respectively, of Mt.
Rainier Bank’s total loan portfolio. Mt. Rainier Bank’s major source of income is interest and fees charged on loans.

Interest income on loans is recognized based on principal amounts outstanding, at applicable interest rates.
Accrual of interest on impaired loans is discontinued when reasonable doubt exists as to the full, timely collection of
interest or principal or when payment of principal or interest is contractually past due 90 days, unless the loan is well
secured and in the process of collection. When a loan is placed on non-accrual status, all interest previously
accrued, but not collected, is reversed against current period interest income. Income on such loans is then
recognized only to the extent that cash is received and when the future collection of principal is probable. Interest
accruals are resumed on such loans only when they are brought current with respect to principal and interest and
when, in the opinion of management, the loans are estimated to be fully collectible as to both principal and interest.

In general, Mt. Rainier Bank is permitted by law to make loans to single borrowers in aggregate amounts of
up to fifteen percent (15%) of Mt. Rainier Bank’s unimpaired capital and unimpaired surplus. Mt. Rainier Bank, on
occasion, sells participations in loans when necessary to stay within lending limits or to otherwise limit Mt. Rainier
Bank’s exposure. Mt. Rainier Bank's goal is to reduce the risk of undue concentrations of loans to multiple borrowers
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engaged in similar activities that would cause them to be similarly impacted by economic or other conditions. At
December 31, 2002, no such concentration exceeded 10% of Mt. Rainier Bank’s loan portfolio, although
approximately 3% of Mt. Rainier Bank’s loan portfolio consisted of agricultural loans and approximately 7% of interim
real estate construction loans. Mt. Rainier Bank has no loans to foreign countries and its policy is to lend within
Washington State, however Mt. Rainier Bank does have some loans to out-of-state borrowers.

In the normal course of business there are various commitments outstanding and commitments to extend
credit which are not reflected in the financial statements. These commitments generally require the customers to
maintain certain credit standards and have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses. Mt. Rainier Bank
uses the same credit policies in making commitments as it does for loans. Management does not expect that all
such commitments will be fully utilized.

Lending activities are conducted pursuant to a written Loan Policy which has been adopted by the Board of
Directors of Mt. Rainier Bank. Each loan officer has a defined lending authority. Regardless of lending authority,
aggregate loans over $350,000 are approved by Mt. Rainier Bank’s Loan Committee, and aggregate loans over
$250,000 are reviewed by Mt. Rainier Bank’s Loan Committee.

The bank’s mortgage activity consists of originating residential loans wherein the closing of each loan is
preceded by its negotiated sale on the secondary market. Primarily, these loans are funded by the bank and
promptly sold. The bank also makes residential construction loans wherein a “take-out” is negotiated on the
secondary market. Bank guidelines for loan-to-value ratios are closely adhered to.

Investment Portfolio

The investment policy of Mt. Rainier Bank is an integral part of the overall asset/liability management of Mt.
Rainier Bank. Mt. Rainier Bank’s investment policy is to establish a portfolio which will provide liquidity necessary to
facilitate making loans and to cover deposit fluctuations while at the same time achieving a satisfactory investment
return on the funds invested. The investment policy is reviewed annually by Mt. Rainier Bank’s Board of Directors.
Mt. Rainier Bank stresses the following attributes for its investments: capital protection, liquidity, yield, risk
management and pledgeability. With its implementation of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No.
115, Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities, Mt. Rainier Bank is required to classify its
portfolio into three categories: Held to Maturity, Trading Securities, and Available for Sale.

Held to Maturity securities include debt securities that Mt. Rainier Bank has positive intent and ability to hold
to maturity; these securities are reported at amortized cost. As of December 31, 2002, Mt. Rainier Bank heid no
securities as Held to Maturity.

Trading Secuirities include debt and equity securities that are purchased and held solely for the purpose of
selling them in the short-term future for trading profits. Trading Securities are reported at fair market value with
unrealized gains and losses included in earnings. As of December 31, 2002, Mt. Rainier Bank held no securities as
Trading Securities.

Available for Sale securities include those which may be sold to implement Mt. Rainier Bank’s asset/liability
management strategies and in response to changes in interest rates, prepayment rates and similar factors. These
securities are reported at fair market value with unrealized gains and losses excluded from the earnings and reported
as a separate component of shareholders’ equity. All of Mt. Rainier Bank's investment securities at December 31,
2002, were classified as Available for Sale.

As a national bank and member of the Federal Reserve System, Mt. Rainier Bank is required to have
$284,000 invested in Federal Reserve Bank Stock. Also, as a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank, Mt. Rainier
Bank is required to keep $387,000 in stock. This portion of Mt. Rainier Bank’s investment portfolio is not tiquid.

Forward Looking Statement Disclosure

In addition to historical information, this report may contain certain “forward looking statements” within the
meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 (PSLRA). This statement is included for the express
purpose of availing Mountain Bank Holding of the protections of the safe harbor provisions of the PSLRA. The
forward-looking statements contained in this report are subject to factors, risks, and uncertainties that may cause
actual results to differ materially from those projected. Important factors that might cause such a material difference
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include, but are not limited to, those discussed in this report. Such items that could cause actual results to differ
materially from the forward looking statements in this report are: general economic conditions, world and national
events that could impact the economy and interest rates, including their impact on capital expenditures; business
conditions in the banking industry; the regulatory environment; new legislation; vendor guality and efficiency;
employee retention factors; rapidly changing technology and evolving banking industry standards; competitive
standards; competitive factors, including increased competition with community, regional, and national financial
institutions; fluctuating interest rate environments; and similar matters. Readers are cautioned not to place undue
reliance on these forward-looking statements, which reflect management’s analysis only as of the date of the
statement. Mountain Bank Holding undertakes no obligation to publicly revise or update these forward-looking
statements to reflect events or circumstances that arise after the date of this report. Readers should carefully review
the risk factors described in this and other documents we file from time to time with the Securities and Exchange
Commission.

Statistical Information about Mountain Bank Holding

The following statistical information should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements
and accompanying notes included elsewhere herein.

The composition of the loan portfolio {(excluding loans held for sale, which are normally held only for a short
period) is summarized as follows:

LOAN PORTFOLIO — TYPES OF LOANS

December 31, 2002 December 31, 2001
Percent of Percent of
Amounts | Total Loans | Amounts | Total Loans
(dollars in thousands)

Commercial and Agricultural $20,510 24.93% $18,483 26.83%
Real Estate:

Construction 5,602 6.81% 5,506 7.99%

Mortgage 50,381 61.26% 39,583 57.46%

Consumer 5,758 7.00% 5,315 7.72%

Total Loans 382,261 100.00% $68,887 100.00%

LOAN PORTFOLIO — MATURITIES AND SENSITIVITIES ON LOANS

QOver One Maturing
One Year Through After TOTAL
Or Less Five Years | Five Years
(in thousands)

Amount Fixed Fixed

Commercial and Agricultural $10,236 $8,820 $1,454 $20,510
Real Estate ~

Construction 4,735 0 867 5,602
Mortgage 7,262 27,866 15,263 50,391
Consumer 1,223 3,827 708 5,758
Total $23,456 $40,513 $18,292 $82,261

CREDIT RISK MANAGEMENT AND ALLOWANCE FOR CREDIT LOSSES

Credit risk and exposure to loss are inherent parts of the banking business. Management seeks to manage
and minimize these risks through its loan and investment policies and loan review procedures. Management
establishes and continually reviews lending and investment criteria and approval procedures that it believes reflect
the risk sensitive nature of Mt. Rainier Bank’s operations. The loan review procedures are designed to monitor
adherence to established criteria and to ensure that on a continuing basis such standards are enforced and
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maintained.

Management'’s objective in establishing lending and investment standards is to manage the risk of loss and
provide for income generation through pricing policies. To effectuate this policy, we have established specific terms
and maturity schedules for each loan type, such as commercial, real estate, consumer, etc.

Applicable regulations require that each insured institution review and classify its assets on a regular basis.
In addition, in connection with examinations of insured institutions, regulatory examiners have authority to identify
problem assets and, if appropriate, require them to be classified. There are three classifications for problem assets:
substandard, doubtful and loss. Substandard assets have one or more defined weaknesses and are characterized
by the distinct possibility that the insured institution will sustain some loss if the deficiencies are not corrected.
Doubtful assets have the weaknesses of substandard assets with the additional characteristic that the weaknesses
make collection or liquidation in full on the basis of currently existing facts, conditions and values guestionable, and
there is a high possibility of loss. An asset classified as loss is considered uncollectable and of such little value that
continuance as an asset of the institution is not warranted. When an insured institution classifies problem assets as
either substandard or doubtful, it is required to establish general allowances for loan losses in an amount deemed
prudent by management. These allowances represent loss allowances which have been established to recognize
the inherent risk associated with lending activities and the risks associated with particular problem assets. When an
insured institution classifies problem assets as loss, it charges off the balance of the asset against the allowance for
loan losses. Assets which do not currently expose the insured institution to sufficient risk to warrant classification in
one of the aforementioned categories but possess weaknesses are required to be designated as special mention.
The Bank’s determination as to the classification of its assets and the amount of its valuation allowances is subject to
review by the FDIC and the OCC and can order the establishment of additional loss allowances.

The loan portfolio is regularly reviewed and management determines the amount of loans to be charged off.
In addition, such factors as Mt. Rainier Bank’s previous loan loss experience, prevailing economic conditions,
industry concentrations and the overall quality of the loan portfolio are considered. While management uses
available information to recognize losses on loans and foreclosed real estate, future additions to the allowance may
be necessary based on changes in economic conditions. In addition, various regulatory agencies, as pan of their
examination process, periodically review the allowances for losses on loans and foreclosed real estate. Such
agencies may require Mt. Rainier Bank to recognize additions to the allowances based on their judgments about
information available at the time of their examinations. In addition, any loan or portion of a loan that is classified as a
‘loss’ by regulatory examiners is charged-off.

The allowance for credit losses is maintained at a level management considers adequate to provide for
probable losses based on evaluating known and inherent risks in the loan portfolio. The allowance is reduced by
loans charged off and increased by provisions charged to earnings and recoveries on loans previously charged off.
The allowance is based on management’s periodic evaluation of factors underlying the quality of the loan portfolio,
including changes in the size and composition of the loan portfolio, actual loan loss experience, current economic
conditions, and detailed analysis of individual loans for which full collectibility may not be assured. This evaluation is
inherently subjective as it requires estimates that are susceptible to significant revision as more information becomes
available.

When information confirms that specific loans or portions of loans are uncollectible, these amounts are
charged off against the allowance for credit losses. The existence of some or all of the following criteria will generally
confirm that a loss has been incurred: the loan is significantly delinquent and the borrower has not evidenced the
ability or intent to bring the loan current; Mt. Rainier Bank has no recourse to the borrower, or if it does, the borrower
has insufficient assets to pay the debt; the estimated fair value of the collateral is significantly below the current loan
balance, and there is little or no near-term prospect for improvement.

The allowance for credit losses is estimated by management based on historical loss experience and known
changes within the loan portfolio at the measurement date. The provision that is charged to income is the amount
needed to maintain an adequate allowance for credit losses. The aliowance for credit losses at December 31, 2002
was $852,000 or 1.04% of loans outstanding. The allowance for credit losses at year end 2001 was $753,000 or
1.09% of loans outstanding. The following table presents data related to Mt. Rainier Bank’s allowance for credit
losses for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001:



SUMMARY OF LOAN LOSS EXPERIENCE AND RELATED INFORMATION

Allowance for credit losses
(beginning of period)

Loans charged off:
Commercial and agricultural
Real estate construction
Real estate mortgage
Consumer

Recoveries of loans previously charged off:
Commercial and agricultural
Real estate construction
Real estate mortgage
Consumer

Net loans charged off

Provision for possible loan losses

Allowance for possible credit losses
(end of period)

Loans outstanding:
Average
End of period

Ratio of allowance for loan loss to total ioans outstanding

Average
End of period

Ratio of net charge-offs to average loans outstanding

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31,
2002 2001
(dollars in thousands)
$753
10
0
221
47
278
10 0
0] 0
0 0
7 6
Total 17 5]
261 32
360 85
852 753
$74,940 $67,875
82,261 68,887
1.14% 1.11%
1.04% 1.09%
0.35% 0.05%

ALLOCATION OF THE ALLOWANCE FOR CREDIT LOSSES BY LOAN CLASSIFICATION

The allowance for credit losses, in management’s judgement, is allocated as follows to cover probable loan

losses:

December 31, 2002 December 31, 2001
Allocation of Allocation of
allowance for % of loans to allowance for % of loans to
credit losses total loans credit losses total loans
Commercial and agriculture $395 24.93% $422 26.83%
Real estate construction 41 6.81% 34 7.99%
Real estate mortgage 272 61.26% 181 57.46%
Consumer 144 7.00% 116 7.72%
Total $852 100.00% $753 100.00%




The foregoing conditions and adjustments reflect management'’s best estimate of items recognized when
adjusting the loss percentage for each pool of loans, and adjustments to historical experience. These factors affect
our assessment of low and high estimates of losses in our portfolio. The determination of the amounts of the
provisions for loan losses is based on management’s current judgment and the quality of the loan portfolio, and
considers all known, relevant internal and external factors that affect loan collectibility. These include regional
economic indicators such as employment; retail sales; real estate trends and specific areas of concentration for our
market including the forest and dairy/agricultural industries. Mt. Rainier Bank has also accounted for categories of
loan risk not reflected in the table above including such potential advances as letters of credit, unfunded
commitments to lend and mortgages held for sale.

During 2002, the loan loss allocations by category were adjusted to reflect the overall changes as they affect
percentages in each pool of loans categorized by the banks Loan Loss Reserve Analysis. By this method, consumer
loans, as a percentage of overall loans decreased from 7.72% to 7.00% as of December 31, 2002. During this same
period, commercial and agriculture loans decreased from 26.83% to 24.93% as loan demand repositioned itself
toward less risky, Real Estate secured loans that changed from 65.45% to 68.07% of the bank portfolio. The
fundamental process for calculating the banks loan loss allocation requirements remained unchanged during this
accounting period.

Loan quality, as measured by changes in the loan portfolio, as well as those identified as criticized/classified
affect loan loss reserve allocations. Loan quality remained satisfactory with $129,793 in past due loans as of
December 31, 2002. Likewise, loans identified as criticized/classified loans ended the year at $672,523, less than
the prior year-end. Not withstanding any unforeseen changes in the economy, the banks ioan portfolio by the banks
assessment remain stable.

RISK ELEMENTS — NON-ACCRUAL, PAST DUE AND RESTRUCTURED LOANS

The following table sets forth information regarding non-performing loans of Mt. Rainier Bank on the dates
indicated. Accrual of interest is discontinued when there is reasonable doubt as to the full, timely collection of
interest or principal. When a loan becomes contractually past due 90 days with respect to interest or principal, it is
reviewed and a determination is made as to whether it should be placed on non-accrual status. When a loan is
placed on non-accrual status, all interest previously accrued but not collected is reversed against current period
interest income. Income on such loans is then recognized only to the extent that cash is received and where the
future collection of principal is probable. Interest accruals are resumed on such loans only when they are brought
fully current with respect to principal and interest and when, in the judgment of management, the loans are estimated
to be fully collectible as to principal and interest. Restructured loans are those loans on which concessions in terms
have been granted because of a borrower’s financial difficulty. Interest is generally accrued on such loans in
accordance with the new terms.

2002
90 Days or Lost
More Past Due | Non-accrual | Restructured Interest
(dollars in thousands)
Commercial and Agricultural 30 $88 $0 $3
Real Estate 0 0 0 N/A
Consumer 0 0 0 N/A
Total $0 $88 $0 N/A
2001
90 Days or Lost
More Past Due | Non-accrual | Restructured Interest
(dollars in thousands)
Commercial and Agricultural $0 $0 $0 N/A
Real Estate 0 0 0 N/A
Consumer 0 0 0 N/A
Total $0 $0 $0 N/A




INVESTMENT SECURITIES PORTFOLIO

The following table presents the composition and carrying value of Mt. Rainier Bank’s investment portfolio at
December 31, 2002 and 2001, and the dollar and percentage changes of each investment category.

December 31, | December 31, Dollar Percentage
2002 2001 Change Change
(dollars in thousands)

US Treasury securities $3,141 $3,090 $51 1.65%
US Government and agency securities 7,573 8,238 (665) -8.07%
Mortgage backed securities 12,330 11,769 561 4.77%
Municipal bonds 400 502 (102) -20.32%
Corporate bonds 6,058 8,013 (1,955) -24.40%
Equity securities 60 -0- 60 100.00%
Total $29,562 $31,612 | ($2,050) -6.48%

The fair value of investment securities and the maturities and yield information on the investment portfolio is
as follows:

December 31, 2002

Over One Qver Five
One Year Through Through Over Ten
Or Less Five Years Ten Years Years

Amount | Yield | Amount | Yield | Amount | Yield | Amount | Yield

US Treasury Securities $1,522 3.21% | $1,621 5.43% $0 0% $0 0%
US Government Agency Securities 1,009 3.13% 6,566 4.75% 0 0% 0 0%
Mortgage Backed Securities 543 6.89% 7,092 5.59% 4,696 5.80% 0 0%
Corporate Bonds 1,126 5.81% 4,928 5.87% 0 0% 0 0%
Municipal Bonds (1) 299 4.87% 100 4.74% 0 0% 0 0%
Equity securities 60 0% 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%

Total $4,559 $20,307 $4,696 $0
Weighted Average Yield 4.56% 5.36% 5.80% 0%

(1) Yield on municipal bonds is not calculated on a tax equivalent basis

DEPOSITS

Mt. Rainier Bank's primary sources of funds are interest-bearing deposits. The following table sets forth the
average amount of and average rates paid on Mt. Rainier Bank’s deposit accounts for the years ended.

December 31, 2002 December 31, 2001
Average Average Average Average

Amounts Rate Amounts Rate

Paid Paid

(dollars in thousands)

Non-interest bearing demand $17,901 0.00% $15,240 0.00%
Interest-bearing demand 38,448 1.60% 29,018 2.62%
Savings 12,600 0.99% 10,384 1.76%
Certificates of deposit 30,503 3.75% 30,671 5.67%
Certificates of deposit over $100,000 16,540 4.08% 14,194 5.94%
Total $115,992 2.61% $99,507 4.18%




Maturity in:

At December 31, 2002, the scheduled maturities of certificates of deposit were:

December 31, 2002

Three months or less

Over three months through six months
Over six months through twelve months

Over twelve months

Total

The following ratios applicable to Mountain Bank Holding are among those commonly used in analyzing

bank holding companies:

Less Than $100,000
$100,000 or More
(dollars in thousands)
$8,723 $2,172
6,273 5,383
10,159 6,775
4,965 2,381
$30,120 $16,711

Year Ended December 31,

Return on Average Assets

Return on Average Equity

Dividend Payout Ratio

Average Equity to Average Assets Ratio

At December 31, 2002, and December 31, 2001, neither Mt. Rainier Bank nor Mountain Bank Holding had

any short-term borrowings.

The matching of assets and liabilities may be analyzed by examining the extent to which such assets and
liabilities are interest rate sensitive and by monitoring an institution’s interest rate sensitivity “gap”. An asset or
liability is interest rate sensitive within a specific time period if it will reprice within that time period. The interest rate
sensitivity gap is defined as the difference between the amount of interest-bearing assets anticipated, based upon
certain assumptions, to mature or reprice within a specific time period and the amount of interest-bearing liabilities
anticipated, based upon certain assumptions, to mature or reprice within that time period. A gap is considered
positive when the amount of interest rate sensitive assets maturing within a specific time frame exceeds the amount

2002 | 2001
0.88% 0.83%
8.04% 7.35%

0% 0%
10.96% 11.22%

of interest sensitive liabilities maturing within that same time frame. If negative, the reverse is true.

The following table represents an interest rate sensitivity analysis at December 31, 2002.

GAP ANALYSIS

Rate Sensitive Assets:
Loans, including loans held for sale
Investments
Interest Bearing Deposits

Total
Rate Sensitive Liabilities:
Savings, NOW and Interest Checking
Time Deposits
Total

Interest Sensitive Gap
Cumulative Gap
Cumulative Gap as a % of Average Earning Assets

Total One Year to Over Five
Within One Five Years Years
Year
(dollars in thousands)

$23,456 $40,513 $18,292
4,499 20,307 4,696
17,031 855 0
$44,986 $61,675 $22988
$60,361 $0 $0
39,485 7,346 0
$99,846 $7,346 $0
($54,860) $54,329 $22,988
($54,860) ($531) $22,457
44.98% .44% 18.41%
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market interest rate changes affected the repricing of assets and liabilities in equal magnitudes, this indicates that the "
effect of rising interest rates on Mountain Bank Holding would be a decrease in the net interest margin, whereas
falling interest rates would cause a corresponding increase in margin.

DISTRIBUTION OF AVERAGE ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

AND INTEREST YIELDS

The following table sets forth the average balance sheets of Mountain Bank Holding for the past two years
along with an analysis of net interest earnings for each major category of interest earning assets and interest bearing
liabilities, the average rate paid in each category, and net yield on earning assets. Average non-accrual loans were
$68 in 2002 and $15 in 2001 and are included in average total loans. Loan fees of $789 in 2002 and $571 in 2001

are included in interest income.

ASSETS
interest earning assets:
Loans
Investments
Federal funds sold and deposits in banks
Total interest earning assets
Non-interest earning assets:
Cash and due from banks
Premises and equipment
Other assets
Allowance for possible credit losses
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Interest bearing liabilities:
Interest bearing demand deposits
Savings
Certificates of deposit
Certificates of deposit over $100,000
Total interest bearing deposits

Federal funds purchased
Other borrowings
Total interest bearing liabilities

Non-interest bearing liabilities:
Demand deposits
Other liabilities
Sharehoiders’ equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Net interest income

Net interest margin

*Tax equivalent basis

11

2002 2001
Average Interest  Annualized | Average  Interest Annualized
Balance Earned/ Yield/ Balance  Earned/ Yield/
Expense Rate Expense Rate
(dollars in thousands)
$74,940 $6,590 8.8% $67,875 $6,376 9.4%
31,676 1,358* 4.3% 25,837 1,444* 5.6%
15,339 230 1.5% 11,976 449 3.7%
$121,955 $8,178 6.7% 105,688 $8,269 7.8%
$1,192 3,591
4,217 3,447
4,235 774
(782) (732)
$130,817 $112,768
$38,448 $615 1.6% $29,018 $760 2.6%
12,600 125 1.0% 10,384 183 1.8%
30,503 1,145 3.8% 30,671 1,739 57%
16,540 675 4.1% 14,194 843 5.9%
$98,091 $2,560 2.6% $84,267 $3,525 4.2%
0 0] 0 0
37 3 8.1% 39 3 7.7%
$98,128 $2,563 2.6% $84,306  $3,528 4.2%
$17,901 $15,240
456 527
14,332 12,695
$130,817 $112,768
$5,615 $4,741
4.6% 4.5%



CHANGES IN INTEREST INCOME AND EXPENSE VOLUME AND RATE VARIANCES

The change in interest due to both volume and yield has been allocated to volume and yield changes in
proportion to the relationship of the absolute dollar amount of the change in each amount.

2002 2001
Net Net
Change Change
Net
Net Volume Yield Change Volume Yield
Change
(dollars in thousands)
Loans $214 $637  ($423) $371 $588  ($217)
Investments (86) 294 380 (16) 97 (113)
Federal Funds Sold (219) 102 (321) 339 399 (60)
Total ($91) $1,033 (81,124) $694 $1,084  (8390)
Interest Bearing Demand (145) 203 (348) 41) 76 (117)
Savings (58) 33 (91) (40) (6) (46)
Certificates of deposit (594) (10) (584) 424 426 (2)
Certificates of deposit over $100,000 (168) 124 (292) 279  (297) (18)
Total ($965) $350 (%$1,315) $622 $805 $183

Fed Funds Purchased
Other Borrowings 0 0 0 ($31) (831) $0
Total ($965) $350 ($1,315) $591 $774  ($183)

Net Interest Income $874 $683 $191 $103 $310  ($207)

SUPERVISION AND REGULATION

The following discussion is only intended to provide brief summaries of significant statutes and regulations
that affect the banking industry and therefore is not complete. Changes in applicable laws or regulations, and in the
policies of regulators, may have a material effect on our business and prospects. We cannot accurately predict the
nature or extent of the effects on our business and earnings that fiscal or monetary policies, or new federal or state
laws, may have in the future.

Significant Changes in Banking Laws and Requlations

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. On July 30, 2002, the President signed into law the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002 (the “Act”) to address corporate and accounting fraud. The Act establishes a new accounting oversight board
that will enforce auditing standards and restricts the scope of services that accounting firms may provide {o their
public company audit clients. Among other things, it also (/) requires chief executive officers and chief financial
officers to certify to the accuracy of periodic reports filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”);
(ii) imposes new disclosure requirements regarding internal controls, off-balance-sheet transactions, and pro forma
(non-GAAP) disclosures; (iif) accelerates the time frame for reporting of insider transactions and periodic disclosures
by public companies; and (iv) requires companies to disclose whether or not they have adopted a code of ethics for
senior financial officers and whether the audit committee includes at least one “audit committee financial expert.”

The Act requires the SEC, based on certain enumerated factors, to regularly and systematically review
corporate filings. To deter wrongdoing, the Act; (/) subjects bonuses issued to top executives to disgorgement if a
restatement of a company’s financial statements was due to corporate misconduct; (ii) prohibits an officer or director
misleading or coercing an auditor; (/ii} prohibits insider trades during pension fund “blackout periods”; (iv) imposes
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new criminal penalties for fraud and other wrongful acts; and (v) extends the period during which certain securities
fraud lawsuits can be brought against a company or its officers.

As a publicly reporting company, we are subject to the requirements of the Act and are in the
process of complying with, and establishing procedures for, compliance with the Act and related rules and
regulations issued by the SEC. At the present time, and subject to the final rules and regulations the SEC may
adopt, we anticipate that we will incur additional expense as a result of the Act, be we do not expect that such
compliance will have a material impact on our business.

USA Patriot Act of 2001. On October 26, 2001, President Bush signed the Uniting and Strengthening
America by Providing Appropriate Tools Required to Intercept and Obstruct Terrorism (“USA Patriot Act”) of 2001.
Among other things, the USA Patriot Act (i) prohibits banks from providing correspondent accounts directly to foreign
shell banks; (i) imposes due diligence requirements on banks opening or holding accounts for foreign financial
institutions or wealthy foreign individuals; (7ii) requires financial institutions to establish an anti-money-laundering
compliance program; and (iv) eliminates civil liability for persons who file suspicious activity reports. The USA Patriot
Act also increases governmental powers to investigate terrorism, including expanded government access to account
records. The Department of the Treasury is empowered to administer and make rules to implement the USA Patriot
Act. While we believe the USA Patriot Act may, to some degree, affect our record keeping and reporting expenses,
we do not believe that it will have a material adverse effect on our business and operations.

Financial Services Modernization. The laws and regulations that affect banks and bank holding companies
recently underwent significant changes as a result of the Financial Services Modernization Act of 1999, also known
as the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act of 1999. Generally, the act (i) repealed the historical restrictions on preventing banks
from affiliating with securities firms, (ii) provided a uniform framework for the activities of banks, savings institutions
and their holding companies, (iif) broadened the activities that may be conducted by national banks and banking
subsidiaries of bank holding companies, (iv) provided an enhanced framework for protecting the privacy of
consumers’ information and (v) addressed a variety of other legal and regulatory issues affecting both day-to-day
operations and long-term activities of financial institutions.

Bank holding companies may now engage in a wider variety of financial activities than permitted under
previous law, particularly insurance and securities activities. In addition, in a change from previous law, a bank
holding company may be owned, controlled or acquired by any company engaged in financially related activities, so
long as such company meets certain regulatory requirements. The act also permits national banks (and certain state |
banks), either directly or through operating subsidiaries, to engage in certain non-banking financial activities.

We do not believe that the act will negatively affect our operations. However, to the extent the act permits
banks, securities firms and insurance companies to affiliate, the financial services industry may experience further
consolidation. This consolidation could result in a growing number of larger financial institutions that offer a wider
variety of financial services than we currently offer and that can aggressively compete in the markets we currently
serve.

Mountain Bank Holding

General

As a bank holding company, we are subject to the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, which places us
under the supervision of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve. We must file annual reports with the
Federal Reserve and must provide it with such additional information as it may require. In addition, the Federal
Reserve periodically examines us and Mt. Rainier Bank.

Bank Holding Company Regulation

In general, the Bank Holding Company Act limits bank holding company business to owning or controlling banks
and engaging in other banking-related activities. Bank holding companies must obtain the Federal Reserve Board's
approval before they:

o acquire direct or indirect ownership or control of any voting shares of any bank that results in total ownership or
control, directly or indirectly, of more than 5% of the voting shares of such bank;
o merge or consolidate with another bank holding company; or
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s acquire substantially all of the assets of any additional banks.

Subject to certain state laws, a bank holding company that is adequately capitalized and adequately
managed may acquire the assets of both in-state and out-of-state banks. Under the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act, a bank
holding company meeting ceriain qualifications may apply to the Federal Reserve Board to become a financial
holding company, and thereby engage (directly or through a subsidiary) in certain activities deemed financial in
nature, such as securities brokerage and insurance underwriting.

Controt of Nonbanks. With certain exceptions, the Bank Holding Company Act prohibits bank holding
companies from acquiring direct or indirect ownership or control of voting shares in any company that is not a bank or a
bank holding company unless the Federa! Reserve Board determines such activities are incidental or closely related to
the business of banking.

Contro! Transactions. The Change in Bank Control Act of 1978 requires a person {(or group of persons acting in
concert) acquiring “control" of a bank holding company to provide the Federal Reserve Board with 60 days’ prior written
notice of the proposed acquisition. Following receipt of this notice, the Federal Reserve Board has 60 days (or up to 90
days if extended) within which to issue a notice disapproving the proposed acquisition. In addition, any "company” must
obtain the Federal Reserve Board's approval before acquiring 25% (5% if the "company" is a bank holding company) or
more of the outstanding shares or otherwise obtaining control over Mountain Bank Holding.

Transactions with Affiliates

Mountain Bank Holding and Mt. Rainier Bank are deemed affiliates within the meaning of the Federal
Reserve Act, and transactions between affiliates are subject to certain restrictions. Generally, the Federal Reserve
Act limits the extent to which a financial institution or its subsidiaries may engage in "covered transactions" with an
affiliate. it also requires all transactions with an affiliate, whether or not "covered transactions," to be on terms
substantially the same, or at least as favorable to the institution or subsidiary, as those provided to a non-affiliate.
The term "covered transaction” includes the making of loans, purchase of assets, issuance of a guarantee and other
similar types of transactions.

Tie-In Arrangements

Mountain Bank Holding and Mt. Rainier Bank cannot engage in certain tie-in arrangements in connection
with any extension of credit, sale or lease of property or furnishing of services. For example, with certain exceptions,
neither we nor Mt. Rainier Bank may condition an extension of credit on either a requirement that the customer
obtain additional services provided by either of us, or an agreement by the customer to refrain from obtaining other
services from a competitor.

The Federal Reserve Board has adopted exceptions to its anti-tying rules that allow banks greater flexibility to
package products with their affiliates. These exceptions were designed to enhance competition in banking and non-
banking products and to allow banks and their affiliates to provide more efficient, lower cost service to their
customers.

State Law Restrictions

As a Washington business corporation, we may be subject to certain limitations and restrictions under
applicable Washington corporate law. In addition, although Mt. Rainier Bank is a national bank and therefore
primarily regulated by the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency, Washington banking law may restrict certain
activities of Mt. Rainier Bank.

Mt. Rainier National Bank

General

Mt. Rainier Bank, as a national banking association, is subject to regulation and examination by the OCC.
The federal laws that apply to Mt. Rainier Bank regulate, among other things, the scope of its business, its
investments, its reserves against deposits, the timing of the availability of deposited funds and the nature and
amount of and collateral for loans. The laws and regulations governing Mt. Rainier Bank generally have been
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promulgated to protect depositors and not to protect stockholders of Mountain Bank Holding or Mt. Rainier Bank.

Community Reinvestment Act. The Community Reinvestment Act requires that, in connection with
examinations of financial institutions within their jurisdiction, the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency evaluate
the record of the financial institutions in meeting the credit needs of their local communities, including low and
moderate income neighborhoods, consistent with the safe and sound operation of those banks. These factors are
also considered in evaluating mergers, acquisitions, and applications to open a branch or facility.

Insider Credit Transactions. Banks are also subject to certain restrictions imposed by the Federal Reserve
Act on extensions of credit to executive officers, directors, principal shareholders, or any related interests of such
persons. Extensions of credit must be made on substantially the same terms, including interest rates and collateral,
and follow credit underwriting procedures that are not less stringent than those prevailing at the time for comparable
transactions with persons not covered above and who are not employees. Also, such extensions of credit must not
involve more than the normal risk of repayment or present other unfavorable features.

Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Improvement Act. Under the Federal Deposit insurance Corporation
Improvement Act of 1991 each federal banking agency has prescribed, by regulation, noncapital safety and
soundness standards for institutions under its authority. These standards cover internal controls, information
systems, and internal audit systems, loan documentation, credit underwriting, interest rate exposure, asset growth,
compensation, fees and benefits, such other operational and managerial standards as the agency determines to be
appropriate, and standards for asset quality, earnings and stock valuation. We believe that Mt. Rainier Bank meets
all such standards and do not believe that these regulatory standards materially affect our business operations.

Interstate Banking and Branching

The Riegle~-Neal Interstate Banking and Branching Efficiency Act of 1994 permits nationwide interstate
banking and branching under certain circumstances. This legislation generally authorizes interstate branching and
relaxes federal law restrictions on interstate banking. Currently, bank holding companies may purchase banks in any
state, and states may not prohibit such purchases. Additionally, banks are permitied to merge with banks in other
states as long as the home state of neither merging bank has “opted out.” The Interstate Act requires regulators to
consult with community organizations before permitting an interstate institution to close a branch in a low-income
area.

Under recent Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation reguiations, banks are prohibited from using their
interstate branches primarily for deposit production. The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation has accordingly
implemented a loan-to-deposit ratio screen to ensure compliance with this prohibition.

Washington has "opted in" to the Interstate Act and allows in-state banks to merge with out-of-state banks
subject to certain aging requirements. Washington law generally authorizes the acquisition of an in-state bank by an out-
of-state bank by merger with a Washington financial institution that has been in existence for at least 5 years prior to the
acquisition. With regard to interstate bank branching, out-of-state banks that do not already operate a branch in
Washington may not establish de novo branches in Washington or establish and operate a branch by acquiring a branch
in Washington.

Deposit insurance

The deposits of Mt. Rainier Bank are currently insured to a maximum of $100,000 per depositor through the
Bank Insurance Fund administered by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. All insured banks are required to
pay semi-annual deposit insurance premium assessments to the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.

Dividends

The principal source of Mountain Bank Holding's cash revenues is dividends received from Mt. Rainier Bant
The payment of dividends is subject to certain restrictions. For example, a national bank generally can pay
dividends out of its undivided profits. However, a national bank cannot pay dividends unless the bank’s capital
surplus equals or exceeds its capital stock. There are two exceptions to that restriction. First, a national bank can
pay an annual dividend if the bank first transfers ten percent of its net income for the preceding four quarters to
capital surplus. Second, a national bank can declare quarterly or semiannua! dividends if the bank transfers ten
percent or more of its net income for the preceding two quarters to capital surplus. Overlaying these restrictions is
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an additional restriction that limits the payment of dividends during any calendar year to the extent of the bank’s
retained net income for the previous two years, unless approved by the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency.
Other than the laws and regulations noted above, which apply to all national banks and bank holding companies,
neither we nor Mt. Rainier Bank are currently subject to any regulatory restrictions on our dividends.

Capital Adeguacy

Federal bank regulatory agencies use capital adequacy guidelines in the examination and regulation of bank
holding companies and banks. If capital falls below minimum guideline levels, the holding company or bank may be
denied approval to acquire or establish additional banks or nonbank businesses or to open new facilities.

The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation and Federal Reserve use risk-based capital guidelines for banks
and bank holding companies. These are designed to make such capital requirements more sensitive to differences
in risk profiles among banks and bank holding companies, to account for off-balance sheet exposure and to minimize
disincentives for holding liquid assets. Assets and off-balance sheet items are assigned to broad risk categories,
each with appropriate weights. The resulting capital ratios represent capital as a percentage of total risk-weighted
assets and off-balance sheet items. The guidelines are minimums, and the Federal Reserve has noted that bank
holding companies contemplating significant expansion programs should not allow expansion to diminish their capitai
ratios and should maintain ratios well in excess of the minimum. The current guidelines require all bank holding
companies and federally-regulated banks to maintain a minimum risk-based total capital ratio equal to 8%, of which
at least 4% must be Tier | capital. Tier | capital for bank holding companies includes common shareholders' equity,
certain qualifying perpetual preferred stock and minority interests in equity accounts of consolidated subsidiaries,
less intangibles except as described above.

The Federal Reserve also employs a leverage ratio, which is Tier | capital as a percentage of total assets
less intangibles, to be used as a supplement to risk-based guidelines. The principal objective of the leverage ratio is
to constrain the maximum degree to which a bank holding company may leverage its equity capital base. The
Federal Reserve requires a minimum leverage ratio of 3%. However, for all but the most highly rated bank holding
companies and for bank holding companies seeking to expand, the Federal Reserve expects an additional cushion
of at least 1% to 2%.

The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Improvement Act created a statutory framework of supervisory
actions indexed to the capital level of the individual institution. Under regulations adopted by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation, an institution is assigned to one of five capital categories depending on its total risk-based
capital ratio, Tier | risk-based capital ratio, and leverage ratio, together with certain subjective factors. Institutions
which are deemed to be "undercapitalized”" depending on the category to which they are assigned are subject to
certain mandatory supervisory corrective actions. We do not believe that these regulations have any material effect
on our operations.

Effects of Government Monetary Policy

Our earnings and growth are affected not only by general economic conditions, but also by the fiscal and
monetary policies of the federal government, particularly the Federal Reserve. The Federal Reserve implements
national monetary policy for such purposes as curbing inflation and combating recession, but its open market
operations in U.S. government securities, control of the discount rate applicable to borrowings from the Federal
Reserve, and establishment of reserve requirements against certain deposits, influence the growth of bank loans,
investments and deposits, and also affect interest rates charged on loans or paid on deposits. We cannot predict
with certainty the nature and impact of future changes in monetary policies and their impact on Mountain Bank
Holding and Mt. Rainier Bank.
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[TEM 7. DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY

Mt. Rainier Bank’s main office is in Enumclaw, Washington, at 501 Roosevelt Avenue, in an office building
owned by Mt. Rainier Bank. The facility has 10,275 square feet with two drive-up windows, an automated teiler
machine (ATM), and a night depository. The premises are fully equipped and inctude teller counters, key drawers,
safe, safe deposit boxes, signs and alarm equipment.

On February 8, 1995, Mt. Rainier Bank opened its Buckley Branch located at 29290 Highway 410, Buckley,
Washington. The facility has 3,100 square feet, a two-lane drive up, an ATM and a night depository.

On January 26, 1998, Mt. Rainier Bank opened its Black Diamond Branch located at 31329 Third Avenue,
Black Diamond, Washington. The facility has 3,100 square feet, a two-lane driveup, an ATM and a night depository.

On November 16, 1998, Mt. Rainier Bank opened its Auburn Branch located at 1436 Auburn Way So,
Auburn, Washington. The facility has approximately 2,624 square feet, a two-lane driveup, and includes an ATM and
a night depository.

On April 5, 2002, Mt. Rainier Bank opened its Maple Valley Branch [ocated at 23924 225™ Way SE in Maple
Valley, Washington. The facility has approximately 3,287 square feet and is a full service facility with a two-lane
drive-up, an ATM and a night depository.

Mt. Rainier Bank is in the process of constructing a branch office located at 15104 East Main Street in
Sumner, Washington. The facility will have approximately 3,768 square feet and will be a full service facility with a
two-lane drive-up, an ATM and a night depository. Construction is estimated to be complete approximately mid
March, 2003.

Mt. Rainier Bank owns all of the facilities described above. Management believes that the facilities are of
sound construction, in good operating condition, are appropriately insured and are adequately equipped for carrying
on the business of the Company.

ITEM 8. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

Information regarding “Directors and Executive Officers” of Mountain Bank Holding is incorporated by
reference from Mountain Bank Holding's 2003 Annual Proxy Statement (“Proxy Statement”) under the captions
“BUSINESS OF THE MEETING-Election of Directors,” “SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL
OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT.”

ITEM 8. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

Information regarding “Remuneration of Directors and Officers” of Mountain Bank Holding is incorporated by
reference from Mountain Bank Holding’s Proxy Statement under the captions “INFORMATION REGARDING THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND ITS COMMITTEES- Compensation of Directors” and “EXECUTIVE
COMPENSATION.”

ITEM 10. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF MANAGEMENT AND CERTAIN SHAREHOLDERS

Information regarding “Security Ownership of Management and Certain Shareholders” of Mountain Bank
Holding is incorporated by reference from Mountain Bank Holding’'s Proxy Statement under the caption “SECURITY
OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT.”

ITEM 11. INTEREST OF MANAGEMENT AND OTHERS [N CERTAIN TRANSACTIONS

Information regarding “Interest of Management and Others in Certain Transactions” of Mountain Bank
Holding is incorporated by reference from Mountain Bank Holding’s Proxy Statement under the caption
“TRANSACTIONS WITH MANAGEMENT.”

17



PART il

ltem 1. Market Price of and Dividends on the Registrant’s Common Equity

Market information

No broker makes a market in Mountain Bank Holding’s common stock, and trading has not been extensive.
Trades that have occurred cannot be characterized as amounting to an active market, The stock is traded by
individuals on a personal basis and is not listed on any exchange or traded on the over-the-counter market. Due to
the limited information available, the following price information may not accurately reflect the actual market value of
the shares. The following data includes trades between individual investors. It does not include new issuances of
stock, the exercise of stock options or shares issued under the Employee Stock Purchase Plan.

Period # of Shares Traded Price Range
2001
1* Quarter 6,264 $11.00
2" Quarter 17,307 $11.00
3" Quarter 4,099 $11.00 to $12.00
4" Quarter 14,639 $10.75 to $11.50
2002
1% Quarter 4,949 $11.00 to $12.00
2" Quarter 9,730 $12.00 to $13.50
3" Quarter 7,563 $13.50
4™ Quarter 8,551 ‘ $13.50 to $14.00

The price information was obtained from Mt. Rainier Bank acting as transfer agent for Mountain Bank Holding.

On April 10, 2002, Mountain Bank Holding offered for sale 60,000 shares of no par value common stock at a
subscription price of $12.50 per share. The offering was successfully completed on April 23, 2002.

As of December 31, 2002, there were 2,146,813 shares of Mountain Bank Holding Company common stock
issued and outstanding.

At December 31, 2002, stock options for 207,825 shares of Mountain Bank Holding Company commaon stock
were outstanding. See Note 11 of the audited financial statements for additional information.

Number of Equity Holders
As of January 31, 2002, there were 1,081 holders of record of Mountain Bank Holding's common stock.

Stock Dividends

Dividends, when and if paid, will be subject to determination and declaration by the Board of Directors, which
will take into account the financial condition of Mt. Rainier Bank and Mountain Bank Holding, results of operations,
tax considerations, industry standards, economic conditions and other relevant factors. In 2001 the Board of
Directors declared a 5% (1 share for every twenty shares owned) stock dividend payable to sharenholders of record
as of June 15, 2001. All per share amounts contained in this filing have been adjusted to reflect this stock dividend.
The ability of Mountain Bank Holding to pay dividends in the future will depend primarily upon the earnings of Mt.
Rainier Bank and its ability to pay dividends to Mountain Bank Holding.

Payment of Dividends
The principal source of Mountain Bank Holding’s cash revenues is dividends received from Mt. Rainier Bank.
The payment of dividends is subject to government regulation, in that regulatory authorities may prohibit banks and

bank holding companies from paying dividends that would constitute an unsafe or unsound banking practice. In
addition, a bank has certain restrictions on the payment of dividends and also may not pay cash dividends if that
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payment could reduce the amount of its capital below that necessary to meet minimum applicable regulatory capital
requirements. See “SUPERVISION AND REGULATION - MT. RAINIER NATIONAL BANK” contained elsewhere in
this Annual Report. Other than the laws and regulations noted above, which apply to all banks and bank holding
companies, neither we nor Mt. Rainier Bank are currently subject to any reguiatory restrictions on our dividends.

Mountain Bank Holding’s policy has been to retain earnings to support the growth of Mt. Rainier Bank.
Accordingly, no cash dividend has been declared to shareholders since the inception of Mt. Rainier Bank.

ltem 2. Legal Proceedings

There are no material pending legal proceedings to which we or Mt. Rainier Bank are a party or of which any
of our properties are subject; nor are there material proceedings known to us to be contemplated by any
governmental authority; nor are there material proceedings known to us, pending or contemplated, in which any
director, officer or affiliate or any principal security holder, or any associate of any of the foregoing, is a party or has
an interest adverse to us or Mt. Rainier Bank.
ltem 3. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants

There were no changes or disagreements with accountants in 2002.

ftem 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

During the fourth quarter of the year ended December 31, 2002, no matters were submitted 1o the security
holders through the solicitation of proxies or otherwise.

ltem 5. Compliance with Section 18(a) of the Exchange Act

Mountain Bank Holding has adopted procedures to assist its directors and executive officers with Section
16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act, which includes assisting the officer or director in preparing forms for filing with
the Securities Exchange Commission. Based on the review of such forms, Mountain Bank Holding believes that all
of its executive officers and directors complied with all filing requirements applicable to them in 2002.

ftem 6. Reports on Form 8-K
There were no reports filed on Form 8-K during the last quarter of the period ending December 31, 2002.
ltem 7. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controfs and Procedures

The Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have reviewed and evaluated the effectiveness
of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 240.13a-14(c) and 15d-14(c) as of a
date within 90 days before the filing date of this annual report. Based on that evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer
and the Chief Financial Officer have concluded that the Company’s current disclosure controls and procedures are
effective and timely, providing them with material information relating to the Company required to be disclosed in the
report we file or submit under the Exchange Act.

Changes in Internal Controls

There have not been any significant changes in our internal controls or in other factors that could significantly
affect these controls subsequent to the date of their evaluation. We are not aware of any significant deficiencies or

material weaknesses, therefore no corrective actions were taken.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Board of Directors
Mountain Bank Holding Company
Enumclaw, Washington

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Mountain Bank Holding Company and Subsidiary as of
December 31, 2002 and 2001, and the related consolidated statements of income, shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the
years then ended. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

in our opinion, the consclidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in ali material respects, the financial position
of Mountain Bank Helding Company and Subsidiary as of December 31, 2002 and 2001, and the results of their operations

and their cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

/%é%//m/ Lo,

Tacoma, Washington
January 10, 2003
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

(Dollars in Thousands)

Mountain Bank Holding Company and Subsidiary
December 31, 2002 and 2001

Assets
Cash and due from banks
Interest bearing deposits at other financial institutions
Securities available for sale
Federal Home Loan Bank and Federal Reserve Bank stock, at cost
Loans held for sale

Loans _
Allowance for credit losses
Net loans

Premises and equipment
Foreclosed real estate
Accrued interest receivable
Bank owned life insurance
Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities
Deposits:
Demand
Savings and interest-bearing demand
Time
Total deposits

Accrued interest payable
Note payable
Other liabilities

Total liabilities
Commitments and Contingencies

Shareholders’ Equity
Common stock (no par value); authorized 10,000,000 shares;
issued and outstanding: 2002 - 2,146,813 shares; 2001 - 2,067,401 shares
Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive income
Total shareholders’ equity

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

2002

$ 1522
17,886
29,562

671
2,871

82,261
852
81,409

4,890
151
601

3,205
406

§143,174

$ 19,819
60,361
46,831

127,011

205
36
381

127,633

1,073
9,472
4,626
370
15,541

$143,174

2001

$ 3,620
13,455
31,612

634
1,093

68,887
753
68,134

3,545
650
3,031
107

$125,881

$ 17,009
46,983
48,119

112,111

292
38
137

112,578

1,034
8,698
3,474
97
13,303

$125,881




Consolidated Statements of Income

(Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

Mountain Bank Holding Company and Subsidiary
Years Ended December 31, 2002 and 2001

Interest Income
Loans
Deposits in banks
Investment income:;
Taxable
Tax-exempt
Total interest income

interest Expense
Deposits
Note payable
Total interest expense

Met interest income
Provision for Credit Losses
Net interest income after provision for credit losses

Non-Interest Income
Service charges on deposit accounts
Gains on mortgage loans sold
Gains on sale of securities available for sale--net
Bank owned life insurance income
Other
Total non-interest income

Non-Interest Expenses
Salaries and employee benefits
Occupancy
Equipment
Other
Total nen-interest expenses

Income before income taxes
Income Taxes

Net income
Earnings Per Share

Basic
Diluted

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

2002
$6,590
230
1,331
8,169

2,560
2,563
5,606
360
5,246
552
340
29
174

255
1,351

2,869
256
434

1,390

4,949

1,648
496
$1,152

$.55
52

519
291
31
306
1,147
2,534
218
372
1,253
4,377
1,418
478

$ 940

$.46
44




Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity

(Dollars in Thousands)

Mountain Bank Holding Company and Subsidiary
Years Ended December 31, 2002 and 2001

Shares of
Common
Stock
Balance at December 31, 2000 1,945,136
Comprehensive income:
Net income
Other comprehensive income,
net of tax:
Change in fair value of
securities available
for sale
Comprehensive income
5% stock dividend 98,198
Sale of common stock under
employee stock purchase plan 1,781
Exercise of stock options 16,000
Sale of common stock 6,286

Tax benefit from exercise of
stock options

Balance at December 31, 2001 2,067,401

Comprehensive income:
Net income :
Other comprehensive income,
net of tax:

Change in fair value of
securities available
for sale

Comprehensive income

Sale of common stock under

employee stock purchase plan 1,762
Exercise of stock options 17,650
Sale of common stock 60,000

Tax benefit from exercise of
stock options

Balance at December 31, 2002 2,146,813

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

Common
Stock

$ 973

49

w oo —

1,034

—

$1,073

F-5

Additional
Paid-in
Capital

$7,543

1,031
15
32
66
1

8,698

19
58
668
29

$9,472

Accumulated
Other
Retained Comprehensive

Earnings  Income
$3,616 $ 18
940 --
79
(1,082)
3,474 87
1,152
-- 273
$4,628 $370

Total
$12,150

940

79
1,019

(2)
16
40
69
11

13,303

1,152

273
1,425

20
66
698
29

$15,541




Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(Dollars in Thousands)

Mountain Bank Holding Company and Subsidiary
Years Ended December 31, 2002 and 2001

Cash Flows from Operating Activitie
Net income $ 1,152
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by cperating activities:

Provision for credit losses 360
Depreciation and amortization 401
Deterred federal income tax expense (benefit) 22
Gain on sales of securities available for sale 29
Stock dividends received 16
Gains on loans sold 40
Originations of loans held for sale (33,720
Proceeds from sales of loans 32,282
Bank owned life insurance income {174)
Increase) decrease in accrued interest receivable
ecrease m accrued interest payable 1(87)
Other - net 25
Net cash provided by operating activities 25

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Net increase in interest-bearing deposits in banks (4,431)
Activity in securities available for sale and
Federal Reserve Bank and FHLB stock:

Purchases (15,731)
I\/la]turltles prepayments and calls 12388
Increase in loans made to customers, net of principal collections (13,786
Additions to premises and equipment (1,746
Purchase of bank owned life insurance - -
Net cash used in investing activities (17,805)
Cash Flows from Fi nancmg Activities
Net increase in deposits 14,900
Net proceeds from issuance of stock 784
e ayment of note payable (2)
Xment for fractional 'shares in stock dividend - -
cash provided by financing activities 15,682
Net change in cash and due from banks (2,098)
Cash and Due from Banks
Beginning of year 3,620
End of year $ 1,522
Supp@ emental Duscﬂosures of Cash Flow Information
nterest P $2,650
Income taxes paid 547

Supﬂﬂemenﬁaﬂ Disclosures of Non-Cash [nvesting and Financing Activities

nrealized galn on securities available for sale, net of tax $273
Tax benefit from exercise of stock options 29
Stock dividend --
Foreclosed real estate acquired in settlement of loans, net (151)

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

$ 940
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Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements

Mountain Bank Holding Company and Subsidiary
December 31, 2002 and 2001

Mote 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Consclidation and Operations

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Mountain Bank Holding Company (the Company) and its wholly
owned subsidiary, Mt. Rainier National Bank (the Bank). All significant intercompany transactions and balances have been
eliminated. The Company is a holding company, which operates primarily through its major subsidiary, the Bank.

The Bank operates five branches and has a customer base centered in and around southeastern King County and northeastern
Pierce County, Washington. The Bank provides loan and deposit services to customers, who are predominantly small- and
middle-market businesses and middle-income individuals in western Washington. Its primary funding source is deposits from
businesses and individuals in its market area.

Consolidated Financial Statement Presentation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America and practices within the banking industry. The preparation of financial statements requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities, as of the date of the balance sheet, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ significantly from those estimates. Material estimates that are particularly susceptible
to significant change in the near term relate to the determination of the allowance for credit losses and the valuation of foreclosed
real estate and deferred tax assets.

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified, with no effect on net income or shareholders’ equity, to conform to the 2002
presentation. All dollar amounts, except per share information, are stated in thousands.

Securities Available for Sale

Securities available for sale consist of debt securities that the Bank intends to hold for an indefinite period, but not necessarily to
maturity, and certain equity securities. Such securities may be sold to implement the Bank's asset/liability management strategies
and in response to changes in interest rates and similar factors, and certain equity securities. Securities available for sale are
reported at fair value. Unrealized gains and losses, net of the related deferred tax effect, are reported as a net amount in a
separate component of shareholders' equity entitled “accumulated other comprehensive income.” Realized gains and losses on
securities available for sale, determined using the specific identification method, are included in earnings. Amortization of
premiums and accretion of discounts are recognized in interest income over the period to maturity.

Declines in the fair value of individual securities available for sale below their cost that are other than temporary result in write-
downs of the individual securities to their fair value. Such write-downs are included in earnings as realized losses.

{continued)



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Mountain Bank Holding Company and Subsidiary
December 31, 2002 and 2001

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Loans Held for Sale

Mortgage loans originated for sale in the foreseeable future in the secondary market are carried at the lower of aggregate cost or
estimated market value. Gains and losses on sales of loans are recognized at settlement date and are determined by the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying value of the loans. All sales are made without recourse. Net unrealized
losses are recognized through a valuation allowance established by charges to income.

Loans

Loans are stated at the amount of unpaid principal, reduced by allowance for credit losses. Interest on loans is accrued daily
based on the principal amount outstanding.

Generally the accrual of interest on loans is discontinued when, in management's opinion, the borrower may be unable to meet
payments as they become due or when they are past due 90 days as to either principal or interest, unless they are well secured
and in the process of collection. When interest accrual is discontinued, all unpaid accrued interest is reversed against current
income. |f management determines that the ultimate collectibility of principal is in doubt, cash receipts on nonaccrual loans are
applied to reduce the principal balance on a cash-basis method, until the loans qualify for return to accrual status. Loans are
returned to accrual status when all principal and interest amounts contractually due are brought current and future payments are
reasonably assured.

Allowance for Credit Losses

The allowance for credit losses is maintained at a level considered adequate to provide for probable losses on existing loans
based on evaluating known and inherent risks in the loan portfolio. The allowance is reduced by loans charged off, and increased
by provisions charged to earnings and recoveries on loans previously charged off. The allowance is based on management's
periodic, systematic evaluation of factors underlying the quality of the loan portfolio, including changes in the size and
composition of the loan portfolio, the estimated value of any underlying collateral, actual loan loss experience, current economic
conditions, and detailed analysis of individual loans for which full collectibility may not be assured. This evaluation is inherently
subjective as it requires estimates that are susceptible to significant revision as more information becomes available. While
management uses the best information available to make its estimates, future adjustments to the allowance may be necessary if
there is a significant change in economic conditions.

When available information confirms that specific loans or portions thereof are uncollectible, these amounts are charged off
against the allowance for credit losses. The existence of some or all of the following criteria will generally confirm that a loss has
been incurred: the loan is significantly delinquent and the borrower has not evidenced the ability or intent to bring the loan
current; the Bank has no recourse to the borrower, or if it does, the borrower has insufficient assets to pay the debt; the estimated
fair value of the loan collateral is significantly below the current loan balance, and there is little or no near-term prospect for
improvement.

(continued)



Notes to Consotlidated Financial Statements

Mountain Bank Holding Company and Subsidiary
December 31, 2002 and 2001

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Allowance for Credit Losses (concluded)

When management determines that it is probable that a borrower will be unable to repay all amounts due according to the terms
of the loan agreement, including scheduled interest payments, the loan is considered impaired. Factors considered by
management in determining impairment include payment status, collateral value, and the probability of collecting scheduled
principal and interest payments when due. Loans that experience insignificant payment delays and payment shortfalls are
generally not classified as impaired. Management determines the significance of payment delays and payment shortfalls on a
case-by-case basis, taking into consideration all of the circumstances surrounding the loan and the borrower, including the length
of the delay, the reasons for the delay, the borrower's prior payment record, and the amount of shortfall in relation to the principal
and interest owed. The amount of impairment is measured based on the present value of expected future cash flows discounted
at the loan’s effective interest rate or, when the primary source of repayment is provided by real estate collateral, at the fair value
of the collateral less estimated selling costs. In addition, regulatory agencies, as an integral part of their examination process,
periodically review the Bank's allowance for credit losses, and may require the Bank to make additions to the allowance based on
their judgment about information available to them at the time of their examinations.

The ultimate recovery of all loans is susceptible to future market factors beyond the Bank's control. These factors may result in
losses or recoveries differing significantly from those provided for in the financial statements.

Premises and Equipment

Land is carried at cost. Premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation, which is computed on the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Gains or losses on dispositions are reflected in earnings.

Foreclosed Real Estate

Real estate properties acquired through, or in lieu of, foreclosure are to be sold and are initially recorded at the lower of cost o1
fair value of the properties less estimated costs of disposal. Any write-down to fair value at the time of transfer to foreclosed real
estate is charged to the allowance for credit losses. Properties are evaluated regularly to ensure that the recorded amounts are
supported by their current fair values. Any subsequent reductions in carrying values and revenue and expense from the
operations of properties are charged to non-interest income.

Transfers of Financial Assets

Transfers of financial assets are accounted for as sales when control over the assets has been surrendered. Control over
transferred assets is deemed to be surrendered when (1) the assets have been isolated from the Bank, (2) the transferee obtains
the right (free of conditions that constrain it from taking advantage of that right) to pledge or exchange the transferred assets, anc
(3) the Bank does not maintain effective control over the transferred assets through an agreement to repurchase them before
their maturity.

(continued)
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Notes tc Consolidated Financial Statements

Mountain Bank Holding Company and Subsidiary
December 31, 2002 and 2001

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities result from differences between the financial statement carrying amounts and the tax bases of
assets and liabilities, and are reflected at currently enacted income tax rates applicable to the period in which the deferred tax
assets or liabilities are expected to be realized or settied. The deferred tax provision represents the difference between the net
deferred tax asset/liability at the beginning and end of the year. As changes in tax laws or rates are enacted, deferred tax assets
and liabilities are adjusted through the provision for income taxes.

The Bank provides for income taxes on a separate return basis and remits to the Company amounts currently payable.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of presentation in the consolidated statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are defined as those
amounts included in the balance sheet caption “Cash and due from banks.” The Bank maintains its cash in depository institution
accounts which, at times, may exceed federally insured limits. The Bank has not experienced any losses in such accounts.

Stock-Based Compensation

At December 31, 2002, the Company has four stock-based employee and director compensation plans, which are described
more fully in Note 11, and an employee stock purchase plan, which is described in Note 14, The Company accounts for those
plans under the recognition and measurement principles of APB No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, and related
interpretations. Accordingly, no stock-based compensation cost is reflected in net income as all options granted under those
plans had an exercise price equal to the market value of the underlying common stock on the date of grant. The following table
illustrates the effect on net income and earnings per share if the Company had applied the fair value recognition provisions of
SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation to stock-based compensation awards for the effects of all options
granted on or after January 1, 1995 for the years ending December 31:

2002 2001
Net income, as reported $1,152 $940
Less total stock-based compensation expense determined
under fair value method for all qualifying awards (164) (173)
Pro forma net income $ 988 $767
Earnings Per Share
Basic:
As reported $.55 $.46
Pro forma 47 37
Diluted:
As reported 52 44
Pro forma 46 .36
(continued)




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Mountain Bank Holding Company and Subsidiary
December 31, 2002 and 2001

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Fair Values of Financial Instruments

The following methods and assumptions were used by the Company in estimating the fair values of financial instruments
disclosed in these financial statements:

Cash and Due from Banks and Interest Bearing Deposits at Other Financial institutions
The carrying amounts of cash and due from banks and interest bearing deposits at other financial institutions
approximate their fair value.

Securities Available for Sale
Fair values for securities are based on quoted market prices.

Federal Home Loan Bank and Federal Reserve Bank Stock
The carrying value of Federal Home Loan Bank and Federal Reserve Bank stocks approximates their fair values.

Loans

For variable rate loans that reprice frequently and have no significant change in credit risk, fair values are based on
carrying values. Fair values for fixed rate loans are estimated using discounted cash flow analyses, using interest rates
currently being offered for loans with similar terms to borrowers of similar credit quality. Fair values of loans held for sale
are based on their estimated market prices. Fair values for impaired loans are estimated using discounted cash flow
analyses or underlying collateral values, where applicable.

Deposit Liabilities

The fair value of deposits with no stated maturity date is included at the amount payable on demand. The fair value of
fixed maturity certificates of deposit is estimated by discounting future cash flows using the rates currently offered by the
Bank for deposits of similar remaining maturities.  Fair values of fixed rate certificates of deposit are estimated using a
discounted cash flow calculation based on interest rates currently being offered on similar certificates.

Note Payabie
The fair value of the note payable is estimated using discounted cash flow analyses based on the Company's current
incremental borrowing rates for similar types of borrowing arrangements.

Accrued Interest
The carrying amounts of accrued interest approximate their fair values.

Off-Baiance Sheet instruments

The fair value of commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit was estimated using the fees currently
charged to enter into similar agreements, taking into account the remaining terms of the agreements and the present
creditworthiness of the customers. Since the majority of the Bank’s off-balance sheet instruments consist of non-fee
producing, variable-rate commitments, the Bank has determined they do not have a distinguishable fair value.

(continued)
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Mountain Bank Holding Company and Subsidiary
December 31, 2002 and 2001

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (concluded)
Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share exclude dilution and are computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of common
shares outstanding. Diluted earings per share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if common shares were issued
pursuant to the exercise of options under the Company's stock option plans.

Comprehensive Income

The Compan aﬁplies Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 130, Reporting Comprehensive Income
(SFAS No. 130), which requires that an entity report and display comprehensive income in a financial statement that is displayed
with the same prominence as other financial statements. Comprehensive income is defined as the change in equity of a business
enterprise during a period from transactions and other events and circumstances from non-owner sources. It includes all
changes in equity during a period except those resulting from investments by owners and distributions to owners. With regard to
the Company, comprehensive income includes the net income reported in the statements of income and any changes in fair
value of securities available for sale, reported as a component of shareholders’ equity.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued SFAS No. 143, Accountin%; for Asset Retirement Obligations.
This Statement addresses financial accounting and reporting for obligations associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived
assets and the associated asset retirement costs. This Statement is effective for all fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2002.
Tpe Company does not anticipate that the adoption of SFAS No. 143 will have a material eftect on its financial position or results
of operations.

In December 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued FASB Statement No. 148, Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation - Transition and Disclosure. ~ This_Statement amends FASB Statement No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation, and APB Opinion No. 28, Interim Financial Reporting, to provide alternative methods of transition for a voluntary
chan%e to the fair value based method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation. This Statement does not require
any change from the method currently used by the Company to account for stock-based compensation, but does require more
rominent disclosure in the annual and interim financial statements about the method of accountin%for such compensation and
he effect of the method used on reported results. This Statement was effective for years ending after December 15, 2002. The
Company has adopted the disclosure provisions of SFAS No. 148 in the accompanying financial statements, and accordingly, the
disclosure requirements are set forth in Note 1, in the Stock Based Compensation section.

The Financial Accounting Standards Board has issued Interpretation No. 45, Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure
Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others, - an interpretation of FASB Statements
Nos. 5, 57 and 107 and rescission of FASB Interpretation No. 34. This Interpretation elaborates on the disclosures to be made by
a guarantor in its interim and annual financial statements about its obligations under certain guarantees that it has issued. It also
clarifies that a guarantor is required to recognize, at the inception of a guarantee, a Iiabili%/ for the fair value of the obligation
undertaken in issuing the guarantee. The initial recognition and measurement provisions of this Interpretation are applicable on a
rospective basis to guarantees issued or modified after December 31, 2002. Implementation of these provisions of the
nterpretation is not expected to have a material impact on the Compan%/’s consolidated financial statements. The disclosure
re%wrements of the Interpretation are effective for financial statements of interim or annual Eeriods ending after December 15,
2002, %nd have been adopted in the consolidated financial statements for December 31, 2002, with no additional disclosure
required.



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Mountain Bank Holding Company and Subsidiary

December 31, 2002 and 2001

Note 2 - Restricted Assets

Federal Reserve Board regulations require maintenance of minimum reserve balances either in cash or on deposit with the
Federal Reserve Bank. The amounts of such balances for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001 were $951 and $930,
respectively.

Note 3 - Securities Available for Sale

Debt and equity securities have been classified according to management's intent.

The carrying amounts of securities and their approximate fair values are as foilows:

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
Securities Availabie for Sale
December 31, 2002
U.S. Treasury securities $ 3,075 $ 66 $-- $ 3,141
U.S. Government and agency securities 7,318 255 - - 7,573
Mortgage-backed securities 12,162 176 8 12,330
Obligations of states and political subdivisions 391 9 -- 400
Corporate securities 5,996 97 35 6,058
Equity securities 60 - - 60
$29,002 $603 $43 $29,562
December 31, 2001
U.S. Treasury securities $ 3,106 § 12 $ 28 $ 3,090
U.S. Government and agency securities 8,154 116 32 8,238
Mortgage-backed securities 11,707 86 24 11,769
Obligations of states and political subdivisions 495 7 -~ 502
Corporate securities 8,003 57 47 8,013
$31,465 $278 $131 $31,612

Gross gains on the sales of securities were $33 and $31 in 2002 and 2001, respectively. Gross losses on the sales of securities
were $4 in 2002. There were no gross losses on the sale of securities in 2001.

(continued)
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Mountain Bank Holding Company and Subsidiary
December 31, 2002 and 2001

Note 3 - Securities Available for Sale (concluded)

The carrying amount and approximate market value of debt securities at December 31, 2002 by contractual maturity are shown
below. Expected maturities may differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may have the right to call or prepay

obligations, with or without call or prepayment penalties.

Amortized
Cost
Due in one year or less $ 4,453
Due in one to five years 19,872
Due in five years or more 4,617
$28,942

Securities with a carrying value of $1,000 at December 31, 2002 and 2001 were assigned or pledged to secure

public deposits, and for other purposes as required by law.

Note 4 - Loans

Loans at December 31 consist of the following:

2002

Commercial and agricultural $20,510
Real estate:

Residential 1-4 family 13,516

Commercial 36,875

Construction 5,602
Consumer 5,758

Total loans $82,261
Changes in the allowance for credit losses for the years ended December 31 are as follows:

2002

Balance at beginning of year $753
Provision for credit losses 360
Charge-offs (278)
Recoveries 17

Net charge-offs (261)

Balance at end of year $852

(continued)

Fair
Yalue
$ 4,499

20,307
4,696

$28,502

2001
$18,483
13,790
25,793
5,506
5,315

$68,887

2001

$700
85

(38)
6
(32)
$753




Notes to Consoclidated Financial Statements

Mountain Bank Holding Company and Subsidiary
December 31, 2002 and 2001

Note 4 - Loans (concluded)

Following is a summary of information pertaining to impaired loans:

2002

December 31

impaired loans without a valuation aliowance $88

Impaired loans with a valuation allowance --

Total impaired loans $- -

Valuation allowance related to impaired loans $--
Years Ended December 31

Average investment in impaired loans $89

Interest income recognized on a cash basis on impaired loans 2

At December 31, 2002, there were no commitments to lend additional funds to borrowers whose loans have been modified.

There were no loans 90 days and over past due still accruing interest at December 31, 2002 or 2001.

At December 31, 2002 and 2001, certain officers and directors, or companies in which they have 10% or more beneficial interest,
were indebted to the Bank in the aggregate amount of $2,598 and $2,817, respectively. During 2002 advances of $1,374 were

made, and repayments totaled $1,593.

Note 5 - Premises and Equipment

The components of premises and equipment at December 31 are as follows:

2002

Land $1,601
Buildings 3,081
Equipment, furniture and fixtures 2,512
Construction in process 311
7,505

Less accumulated depreciation 2,615
Total premises and equipment $4,880

Construction in process at December 31, 2002 includes construction costs to date related to a new branch. The estimated cost to

finish the branch in 2003 is estimated to be $450.
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2001

$1.111
2,520
1,927
215
5,773
2,228

$3,545




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Mountain Bank Holding Company and Subsidiary
December 31, 2002 and 2001

Note 6 - Deposits
The composition of deposits at December 31 is as follows:

2002 2001

Demand deposits, non-interest bearing $ 19,819 $ 17,009
NOW and money market accounts 47,073 35,466
Savings deposits 13,288 11,517
Time certificates, $100,000 or more 16,711 17,053
Other time certificates 30,120 31,066

Total $127,011 $112,111

Scheduled maturities of certificates of deposit for future years ending December 31 are as follows:

2003 $39,485
2004 4,042
2005 1,407
2006 389
2007 1,508

$48,831

Note 7 - Note Payabie

The note payable is secured by land, and is payable at $1 monthly, including interest of 8%. Future principal maturities are $2
annually through 2004, $3 annually 2005 through 2007 and $23 thereafter.

Note 8 - Income Taxes

The components of the provision for income taxes are as follows at December 31:

2002 2001

Current $474 $529
Deferred expense (benefit) 22 (51)
Income taxes $496 $478

(continued)
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Mountain Bank Holding Company and Subsidiary
December 31, 2002 and 2001

Note 8 - Income Taxes (conciuded)

The effect of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of deferred tax assets and liabilities at December 31

follows:

Deferred Tax Assets
Allowance for credit losses
Deferred compensation
Accumulated depreciation
Other
Total deferred tax assais

Deferred Tax Liabilities
Accumulated depreciation
Cash basis tax accounting
Deferred income

Unrealized gain on securities available for sale

Total deferred tax liabilities

Net deferred tax assets (liabilities)

Deferred tax liabilities are included with other liabilities and deferred tax assets are included with other assets in the

accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

The following is a reconciliation between the statutory and effective federal income tax rates for the years ended December 31:

Income tax at statutory rate

Increase (decrease) resulting from:
Tax-exempt income
Bank-owned life insurance income
Other

Total income tax expense

2002

Amount

$577

Percent of
Pre-tax
Income

35.0%

2002

$265
42
20
327

16
273
190
479

($152)

2001

Amount

$496

2001

$248
14
28

8
298

26
212
50
288

$ 10

Percent of

Pre-tax

Income

35.0%
(4

(9

—

~—

33.7%
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Mountain Bank Holding Company and Subsidiary
December 31, 2002 and 2001

Note 9 - Commitments and Contingencies

The Bank is party to financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in the normal course of business to meet the financing
needs of its customers. The financial instruments include commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit. These
instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit risk in excess of the amount recognized in the consolidated balance
sheets.

The Bank's exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the other party to the financial instrument for commitments
to extend credit and letters of credit is represented by the contractual amount of those instruments. The Bank uses the same
credit policies in making commitments and conditional obligations as it does for on-balance-sheet instruments. A summary of the
Bank's commitments is as follows:

2002 2001
Commercial and agriculture $ 7,973 $ 6,826
Real estate . 4,554 1,250
Credit cards 2,879 2,777

$15,406 $10,853

Outstanding commitments under letters of credit totaled $566 and $519 at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any condition established
in the contract. Since many of the commitments are expected to expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts
do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. The Bank's experience has been that approximately 75% of loan
commitments are drawn upon by customers. The Bank evaluates each customer's creditworthiness on a case-by-case basis.
The amount of collateral obtained, if deemed necessary by the Bank upon extension of credit, is based on management's credit
evaluation of the party. Collateral held varies, but may include accounts receivable, inventory, property and equipment,
residential real estate, and income-producing commercial properties.

Letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by the Bank to guarantee the performance of a customer to a third party.
Those guarantees are primarily issued to support public and private borrowing arrangements. The credit risk involved in issuing
letters of credit is essentially the same as that involved in extending loans to customers. Collateral held varies as specified
above, and is required in instances where the Bank deems necessary.

The Bank has agreements with commercial banks for lines of credit totaling approximately $5,200, and a credit line with the
Federal Home Loan Bank totaling 10% of assets. The Bank has entered into a blanket pledge agreement with the Federal Home
Loan Bank to secure this credit line. These lines were not drawn upon at December 31, 2002 or 2001.

The Company has entered into contracts with certain of its executives and others, which provide for contingent payments subject
to future events.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Mountain Bank Holding Company and Subsidiary
December 31, 2002 and 2001

Note 10 - Concentration of Credit Risk

The Bank has credit risk exposure, including off-balance-sheet credit risk exposure, as disclosed in Notes 4 and 9. The ultimate
collectibility of a substantial portion of the loan portfalio is susceptible to changes in economic and market conditions in the
region. The Bank generally requires collateral on all real estate loans and typically maintains loan-to-value ratios of no greater
than 75% - 80%. Loans are generally limited, by federal and state banking regulations, to 15% of the Bank’s shareholder's
equity, excluding accumulated other comprehensive income. The Bank, as a matter of practice, generally does not extend credit
to any single borrower or group of related borrowers in excess of $1,500.

The contractual amounts of credit related financial instruments such as commitments to extend credit, credit card arrangements,
and letters of credit represent the amounts of potential accounting loss should the contract be fully drawn upon, the customer
default, and the value of any existing collateral become worthless.

Investments in obligations of states and political subdivisions involve governmental entities within the Bank’'s market area.
Letters of credit were granted primarily to commercial borrowers.

Note 11 - Stock Option Plans
Birector Plans

The 1990 Director Stock Option Plan grants a director an option to purchase 12,600 shares of common stock upon initial election
to the Board of Directors at an exercise price equal to the fair market value of the common stock at the date of grant. Options are
exercisable on a cumulative basis in annual instaliments of one-third each on the third, fourth and fifth anniversary of the date of
grant. A total of 126,000 shares of the Company’s common stock were reserved for option under this plan, of which options for
113,400 shares at $2.38 per share were granted on June 13, 1990, to expire on June 13, 2005 and options for 3,150 shares at
$10.48 per share were granted April 24, 2001, to expire April 24, 2016. Options granted in 1990 were fully vested at December
31, 2001. Options granted in 2001 are not vested at December 31, 2002. Options for 8,550 and 4,200 shares were exercised in
2002 and 2001, respectively, under this director plan. Options for 9,450 shares remain available under this plan.

The 1999 Director Stock Option Plan grants a director an option to purchase shares of common stock at an exercise price which
must be no less than the greater of the fair market value of the commen stock or the net book value of the common stock at the
time of grant. A total of 42,000 shares of the Company’'s common stock were reserved for option under this plan, of which
options for 33,600 shares at $10.48 per share (fair market value) were granted November 21, 2000, expiring on November 21,
2015; none of these options granted are vested at December 31, 2002.

{continued)




Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements

Mountain Bank Holding Company and Subsidiary
December 31, 2002 and 2001

Note 11 - Stock Option Plans (continued)
Employee Plans

In 1990 and 1999, the Company adopted plans providing for granting certain key employees options to purchase common stock.
Under the terms of the plans, options are incentive stock options {as defined in the Internal Revenue Code). The option price will
be fair market value at the date of grant or a price determined by the Board of Directors, but not less than fair value. Options are
exercisable on a cumulative basis in annual installments of one-third each on the third, fourth and fifth anniversary of the date of
grant. Pursuant to these plans, 84,000 shares are reserved for option as of December 31, 2002, of which 43,125 shares (after
forfeitures) have been granted. A total of 40,875 shares remain available for future grant under the 1999 plan at December 31,
2002. No shares remain available for grant under the 1990 plan. In 2002 and 2001, options for 9,100 shares and 12,600 shares,
respectively, were exercised under the employee plans.

The fair value of each option granted in 2001 was estimated on the date of grant, based on the Black-Scholes option pricing
model and using the following weighted-average assumptions:

Dividend yield --%

Expected life 10 to 15 years
Average risk-free interest rate 4.88%
Expected volatility 44.31%

The weighted averége fair value of options granted in 2001 was $6.46. There were no options granted during 2002.

A summary of the status of the Company’s stock option plans as of December 31, 2002 and 2001, and changes during the years
ending on those dates, is presented below:

2002 2001
Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Extercise Exercise
Shares Price Shares Price
Outstanding at beginning of year 232,550 $6.09 244,650 $ 5.62
Granted -- -- 20,450 10.76
Exercised (17,650) 3.81 (16,800) 2.38
Forfeited (7,075) 9.19 (15,750) 8.47
Outstanding at end of year 207,825 $38.17 232,550 $ 6.08
Options exercisable at year-end 129,275 122,150
(continued)
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Mountain Bank Holding Company and Subsidiary
December 31, 2002 and 2001

Note 11 - Stock Option Plans (concluded)

The following information summarizes information about stock options outstanding and exercisable at December 31, 2002:

Weighted

Average Weighted Weighted
Range of Remaining Average Average
Exercise Number Contractual Exercise NMumber Exercise
Prices Outstanding Life (Years) Price Exercisable Price
$2.38-$2.97 75,450 25 $2.38 75,450 $2.38
$5.24 - $6.19 45,150 4.6 $5.90 44,100 $5.90
$8.33 - $11.00 87,225 9.4 $9.63 9,725 $8.37

Note 12 - Profit Sharing Plan

The Bank’s defined contribution profit sharing plan covers substantially all employees who have completed one year or more of
service. Employees are eligible to defer up to 25% of their gross salary, with employer contributions to the Plan made at the
discretion of the Board of Directors. The Bank's contributions for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001 totaled $42 and
$40, respectively.

Note 13 - Deferred Compensation Agreements

in 1993 the Bank established a deferred compensation agreement with a director under which the director will defer his director
fees. At retirement he will receive a benefit of $1 per month for 120 months. The accrued liability related to this agreement
totaled $47 and $42 at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Expenses associated with this plan were $5 annually in 2002
and 2001. The Bank has also purchased a whole-life insurance policy on the director, with values of $36 and $31 at December
312002 and 2001, respectively, which may be used to fund benefits under the deferred compensation agreement.

In 2002, the Board of Directors approved a supplemental retirement plan covering certain management personnel. The post-
retirement benefit provided by the plan is designed to supplement a participating officer’s retirement benefits from social security,
in order to provide the officer with a certain percentage of final average income at retirement age. Expenses associated with this
plan were $77 for the year ended December 31, 2002.

Benefits to employees are funded by life insurance policies purchased by the Company, which had cash surrender values of
$3,169 and $3,000 at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Liabilities to employees, which are being accrued over their
expected time to retirement, were $77 at December 31, 2002.

Also in 2002, the Company purchased long-term care insurance on certain board members and management personnel.
Benefits under this plan vest over five years from the date of the plan. Expense related to this plan in 2002 was $21.
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Mountain Bank Holding Company and Subsidiary
December 31, 2002 and 2001

Note 14 - Employee Stock Purchase Plan

Effective July 1, 1995, the Company adopted an employee stock purchase plan whereby eligible employees can purchase
common stock at the lesser of the stock’s fair market value at the beginning or the end of the plan year. The ag%regate number

of shares reserved under this plan is 42,000. At December 31, 2002, 25,323 shares remain available for purchase under this
plan. No employee can 1purchase more than 420 shares of common stock in an%/ Blan year; 1,762 and 1,870 shares were
purchased at a price of $11.00 and $8.57 per share for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Note 15 - Regulatory Matters

The Company and the Bank are subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by federal banking agencies.
Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can cause certain mandatory -- and possibly additional discretionary -- actions by
regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the Company’s and the Bank's financial statements. Under
capital adequacy guidelines of the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the Company and the Bank must meet
specific capital adequacy guidelines that involve guanntative measures of the Company’s and the Bank's assets, liabilities, and
certain off-balance-sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The Company's and the Bank's capital
classifications are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk weightings and other factors.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Company and the Bank to maintain
minimum amounts and ratios (set forth in the table below? of Tier 1 capital (as defined in the regulations) to total average assets
(as defined), and minimum ratios of Tier 1 and total capital (as defined) to risk-weighted assets (as defined).

As of December 31, 2002, the most recent notification from the Bank’s regulator categorized the Bank as well capitalized under
the regulatory framewaork for prompt corrective action. To be categorized as well capitalized, the Bank must maintain minimum

total risk-based, Tier 1 risk-based, and Tier 1 leverage ratios as set forth in the table. There are no conditions or events since that
notification that management believes have changed the institution’s category.

The Company’s and the Bank’s actual capital amounts and ratios are also presented in the table.
To be Well Capitalized

Under Prompt
Capital Adequacy  Corrective Action
Actual Purposes Provisions
Amount Ratio Amount  Ratic  Amount Ratic
December 31, 2002
Tier 1 capital (to average assets):
Consolidated $15,171 10.78%  $5,631 4.00% N/A N/A
‘Bank 15,074 10.71 5,631 4.00 $ 7,039 5.00%
Tier 1 capital (to risk-weighted assets):
Consolidated 15,171 13.00 4,667 4.00 N/A N/A
Bank 15,074 12.92 4,667 4.00 7,001 6.00
Total capital:
Consolidated 16,023 13.73 9,334 8.00 N/A N/A
Bank 15,926 13.65 9,334 8.00 11,668 10.00
(continued)
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Mountain Bank Holding Company and Subsidiary
December 31, 2002 and 2001

Note 15 - Regulatory Matters (concluded)
To be Well Capitalized

Under Prompt
Capital Adequacy  Corrective Action
Actual Purposes Provisions
Amount Ratic Amount  Ratic  Amount Ratie
December 31, 2001
Tier 1 capital (o average assets):
Consolidated $13,206 10.72%  $4,927 4.00% N/A N/A
Bank 13,111 10.64 4,927 4.00 $6,159 5.00%
Tier 1 capital (to risk-weighted assets):
Consolidated 13,206 13.39 3,946 4.00 N/A N/A
Bank 13,111 13.29 3,946 4,00 5915 6.00
Total capital:
Consolidated 13,959 14.15 7,892 8.00 N/A N/A
Bank 13,864 14.05 7,892 8.00 9,864 10.00

Management believes, as of December 31, 2002, that the Company and the Bank meet all capital requirements to which they are
subject.

Restrictions on Retained Earnings

National banks can initiate dividend payments in a given year, without prior regulatory approval, equal to net profits, as defined,
for that year plus retained net profits for the preceding two years. The Bank can distribute as dividends to the parent company
approximately $3,234 as of December 31, 2002 without regulatory approval.

Note 16 - Condensed Financial Information - Parent Company Only

Condensed Balance Sheets - December 31

2002 2001

Assets

Cash $§ 97 $ 83

Investment in the Bank 15,444 13,208

Other assets -- 12

Total assets $15,541 $13,303
Shareholders’ Equity $15,541 $13,303
(continued)
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Notes to Financial Statements

Mountain Bank Holding Company and Subsidiary
December 31, 200Z and 2001

Note 16 - Condensed Financial Information - Parent Company Only (concluded)

Condensed Statements of Income - Years Ended December 31

Operating Expenses

Loss before income taxes and equity
in undistributed income of the Bank

Income Tax Benefit

Loss before equity in
undistributed income of the Bank

Equity in Undistributed Income of the Bank

Net income
Condensed Statements of Cash Flows - Years Ended December 31

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash

used in operating activities:
Equity in undistributed income of subsidiary
Decrease in other assets
Other

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash Flows from [nvesting Activities
Investment in subsidiary

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Proceeds from issuance of common stock
Payment for fractional shares in stock dividend
Net cash previded by financing activities
Net change irn cash

Cash
Beginning of year

End of year
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$1,152

$1,152

(1,273)
12
(19)
(661)

784
784
14

$ 940




Notes {o Financial Statements

Mountain Bank Holding Company and Subsidiary
December 31, 2002 and 2001

MNote 17 - Other Expenses

for the years ended December 31:

Professional fees

Data processing

Office supplies and expenses
State taxes

Note 18 - Earnings Per Share Disclosures

Net Income
(Numerator)

Year Ended December 31, 2002
Basic earnings per share:
Net income $1,152
Effect of dilutive securities:
Options --
Diluted earnings per share:
Met income $1,152

Year Ended December 31, 2001
Basic earnings per share:
Net income $940
Effect of dilutive securities:
Options --
Diluted earnings per share:
Met income $940

of the proceeds to repurchase shares at the average market price during the year.
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Shares

(Benominator)

2,111,819
83,239

2,195,058

2,061,662
75,818

2,137,480

Other expenses include the following amounts which are in excess of 1% of the total of interest income and non-interest income

2001

$ 91
361
124
104

Following is information regarding the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share for the years indicated:

Per Share
Amount

$.55
(.03)
$.52

$.46
(02)
$.44

The number of shares shown for “options” is the number of incremental shares that would result from exercise of options and use



Notes to Financial Statements

Mountain Bank Holding Company and Subsidiary

December 31, 2002 and 2001

Note 20 - Comprehensive Income

Net unrealized gains and losses include, net of tax, $100 of unrealized gains arising during 2002 and $267 of unrealized gains
arising during 2001, less reclassification adjustments of $29 and $31 for gains included in net income in 2002 and 2001,

respectively, as follows:

2002

Unrealized holding gains arising during the year
Reclassification adjustments for gains realized in net income

Net unrezlized gains

2001

Unrealized holding gains arising during the year
Reclassification adjustments for gains realized in net income

Net unrealized gains

Note 21 - Fair Values of Financial Instruments

Before-

Tax

Amount

$442

(29)

$413

$151

(31)

$120

Tax
Benefit

(Expense)

($150)

10

($140)

($51)
10

($41)

The estimated fair values of the Bank’s financial instruments at December 31 were as follows:

Financial Assets

Cash and due from banks, and
interest bearing deposits in
banks

Securities available for sale

Federal Home Loan Bank and
Federal Reserve Bank stocks

Loans held for sale

Loans

Accrued interest receivable

Financial Liabilities
Deposits
Note payable
Accrued interest payable

(continued)

2002
Carrying
Amount

$19,408
29,502

731
2,871
81,409
601

$127,011
36
205
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Fair
Value

$19,408
29,502

731
2,871
81,440
601

$127,259
36
205

2001
Carrying
Amount

$17,075
31,612

634
1,093
68,134
650

$112,111
38
292

Net-of-Tax
Amount

$292
(19)
$273
$100
(21)
$ 79

Fair
Value

$17,075
31,612

634
1,093
68,512
650

$112,561




Notes to Financial Statements

Mountain Bank Holding Company and Subsidiary
December 31, 2002 and 2001

Note 21 - Fair Values of Financial Instruments (concluded)

The Bank assumes interest rate risk (the risk that general interest rate levels will change) as a result of its normal
operations.

As a result, the fair values of the Bank'’s financial instruments will change when interest rate levels change and that
change may either be favorable or unfavorable to the Bank. Management attempts to match maturities of assets and
liabilities to the extent believed necessary to minimize interest rate risk. However, borrowers with fixed rate
obligations are less likely to prepay in a rising rate environment and more likely to prepay in a falling rate
environment. Conversely, depositors who are receiving fixed rates are more likely to withdraw funds before maturity
in a rising rate environment and less likely to do so in a falling rate environment. Management monitors rates and
maturities of assets and liabilities, and attempts to minimize interest rate risk by adjusting terms of new loans, and
deposits and by investing in securities with terms that mitigate the Bank’s overall interest rate risk.

Note 22 - Quarterly Data (Unaudited)

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

Year Ended December 31, 2002
interest income $1,991 $1,972 $2,057 $2,149
Interest expense 690 650 628 595
Net interest income 1,301 1,322 1,429 1,554
Provision for credit losses 41 47 46 226
Non-interest income 321 303 322 405
Non-interest expenses 1,170 1,188 1,291 1,300
Income before income taxes 411 390 414 433
Income taxes 137 128 100 131
Net income $ 274 $ 262 $ 314 $ 302

Earnings per common share:
Basic $.13 $.13 $.15 $.14
Diluted 13 12 14 13

{continued)
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Mountain Bank Holding Company and Subsidiary
December 31, 2002 and 2001

Note 22 - Quarterly Data (Unaudited) (concluded)

Year Ended December 31, 2001
Interest income
Interest expense
Net interest income
Provision for credit losses
Non-interest income
Non-interest expenses
Income before income taxes
Income taxes
Net income
Earnings per common share:

Basic
Diluted

85
$ 166

$.09
.08
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Second
Quarter

$2,058
903
1,185

27

120
$ 240

$.12
M

Third
Quarter

$2,076
897
1,979

22

96

$ 191

$.09

Fourth
Quarter

$2,1056
810
1,295

27

177

$ 343

$.16
16
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Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of the registrant (1)
Amended and Restated By-laws of the registrant (2)

Mt. Rainier National Bank 1990 Employee Stock Option Plan (3)

Mt. Rainier National Bank 1990 Director Stock Option Plan (3)

Mountain Bank Holding Company 1995 Employee Stock Purchase Pian (3)
Mountain Bank Holding Company 1998 Employee Stock Option Plan (4)
1999 Employee Stock Option Agreements (4)

Mountain Bank Holding Company 1999 Director Stock Option Plan (4)
1999 Director Stock Option Agreement (4)

Form of 2002 Executive Supplemental Compensation Agreements dated January 1,
2002 for Messrs. Moergeli and Franks and Ms. Brumley

Split Dollar Life Insurance Agreements for Messrs. Moergeli and Franks and Ms.
Brumley

Form of Change in Control Severance Agreement for Steve Moergeli and Sheila
Brumley

Salary Continuation Agreement for Sterlin Franks

Form of Participant Long Term Care Agreement for directors and Sterlin Franks and
Sheila Brumley

Consent of McGladrey & Pullen LLP

Certifications of Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to
906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

(1) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the Registrant’'s quarterly report on Form
10Q-SB for the quarter ended June 30, 2000.

(2) Incorporated by reference to exhibit 3.2 of the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form
10K-SB for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2000.

(3) Incorporated by reference to exhibits included in the Registrant's Registration
Statement on Form 10-SB, Registration No. 000-28394

(4) Incorporated by reference to exhibits 6.5, 6.6, 6.7 and 6.8, respectively, of the

Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10K-SB for the fiscal year ended December 31,

1999.
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Signatures

In accordance with Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
registrant caused this registration statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned,
thereunto duly authorized on February 17, 2003.

Mountain Bank Holding Company

By: /s/
Roy T. Brooks, Chairman of the Board & CEO

In accordance with the Exchange Act, this report has been signed below by the following
persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities indicated on the 17th day of February,
2003.

By: /s/
Roy T. Brooks, Chairman of the Board & CEC
(Principal Executive Officer)
By: /s/
Sheila M. Brumley, CFO & Secretary to the Board
(Principal Accounting Officer)
By: /S/ By /S/
Susan K. Bowen-Hahto, Director Brian W. Gallagher, Director
By: /s/ By: /s
Michael K. Jones, Director Barry C. Kombol, Director
By: /s/ By: /s/
Steve W. Moergeli, Director John W. Raeder, Direcior
By: /s/ By: /st
Garrett S. Van Beek, Director Hans R. Zurcher, Director

J.B. Rupert, Director
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Date: February 21, 2003

CERTIFICATION
I, Roy T. Brooks, President and CEQ, certify that:

| have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-KSB of Mountain Bank Holding Company;

Based on my knowiedge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact
or omit 1o state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances
under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
annual report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
annual report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and
cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

The registrant's other certifying officers and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the
registrant and we have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating to
the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this annual report is being prepared;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures as of a date
within 90 days prior to the filing date of this annual report (the "Evaluation Date"); and

c) presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls
and procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

The registrant's other certifying officers and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, to

the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of directors {or persons

performing the equivalent function):

a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely
affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data and have
identified for the registrant's auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant's internal controls; and

The registrant's other certifying officers and | have indicated in this annua! report whether or not there

were significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal

controls subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with
regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

/sf
Roy T. Brooks, President & CEO
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6. The registrant's other cerifying officers and | have indicated in this annual report whether or not there
were significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal
controls subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with
regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

Date: February 21, 2003
© i /s/

CERTIFICATICN
I, Sheila M. Brumley, SVP & CFQ, certify that:

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-KSB of Mountain Bank Holding Company;

Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact
or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances
under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
annual report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
annual report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and
cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

The registrant's other certifying officers and [ are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disciosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the
registrant and we have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating to
the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this annual report is being prepared;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures as of a date
within 90 days prior to the filing date of this annual report (the "Evaluation Date"); and

¢) presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls
and procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

. The registrant's other certifying officers and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, to

the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of directors (or persons

performing the equivalent function):

a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely
affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data and have
identified for the registrant's auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant's internal controls; and

Sheila M. Brumley, SVP & Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 10.1

We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statement No. 333-61782 of Mountain Bank
Holding Company on Form S-8 of our report, dated January 10, 2003, appearing in this Annual Report on
Form 10-KSB of Mountain Bank Holding Company for the year ended December 31, 2002.

/s/ McGladrey & Pullen, LLP

Tacoma, Washington
February 21, 2003

Exthibit 15.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TC
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Mountain Bank Holding Company (the “Company”) on
Form 10-KSB for the period ending December 31, 2002 as filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), we, Roy T. Brooks, Chief Executive Officer and
Sheila M. Brumley, Chief Financial Officer, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934; and
(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial
condition and results of the operations of the Company.
/s! /s/
Roy T. Brooks, Chief Executive Officer Sheila M. Brumley, Chief Financial Officer
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